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Colloquy 3

THE COURT: All right, gontlenrtfn, with regard
to the flight charge, I'i» us->ng the second of the two 
options and inserting a portion. I will read the first 
paragraph, which includes the incertion with regard to 
the defendant's explanation. Thers has been some 
testinony in the case from which you say infer that the 
defendant fled shortly after the conission of the 
crime.

While the defendant admits he was 'on the 
run* from the authorities sometime after late November 
of 2002, he suggests that his actions, and even shortly 
after the shooting, were for travel to woik in 
Baltimore. Okay.

Now, with regard to the 404(b).

MR. McTIGUE: Judge, I take it you will read
the rest?

THE COURT: I will read the rest of it. I

just wanted to give you the language from the fill*in.
With regard to 404(b), I had originally — X 

guess 1 have to change the introductory paragraph, the 
introductory paragraph reads: "With regard to the
testimony you heard regarding the alleged threat by 
defendant to Carlos Marqulnez on June 4, *04, I charge 
you as follows.” So 1 should change it to: "With

regard to the testimony you heard regarding the alleged
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Colloquy 4

threat aade by defendant to Carlos Marquinex on June 4, 
*04, as well as the testiarany you heard about a social 
security card, credit cards and a driver's license in 
defendant's possession with nanes other than his, as 
well as testimony reqardinq a theft of the passport, I 
charge you as follows.”

MR. SAMPSON: Jt\dge, nay I have the first,
where are you starting the charge?

THE COURT: The 404(b) charge?
MR. SAMPSON: Yeah.

THE COURT: This is it introductory
paragraph, that's all I'm talking about right now.

MR. SAMPSON: Could you just give me the
first sentence, please?

THE COURT: "With regard to the testimony you
heard regarding the alleged threat made by defendant to 
Carlos Marquinex on June 4, '04, as well as the 
testimony you heard about a social security card.
credit cards and a driver's license in defendant's
possession with names other than his, as well as 
testimony regarding a theft of the passport, I charge 
you as follows.”

MR. McTIGUE: Social security card.
THE COURT: I said social security card.
MR. McTIGUE: Judge, just on the date.

Colloquy 5

THE COURT: The actual date of che threat is
wrong?

MR. McTIGUE: )feab.. My recollection, ^ will
show exhibit S-7S to counsel. It's the report.

THE COURT: June 7th.
MR. McTIGUE: June 7th would be the Monday.
THE COURT: For soaM reason I have June 4th

in high head. I don't know how June 4th got in there.
The actual body of the 404(b) charge is 

evidence of other crimes, wrongs or acts is not 
admissible to prove the disposition of a person in 
order to show that he acted in conformicy therewith.
That evidence may be admitted for other purposes, such 
as to prove consciousness of guilt when such a matter 
is relevant to a material matter in dispute.

In this case, the evidence regarding the 
alleged threat made by the defendant, as oiell as, and ! 
will have to add, as well as the testimony with regard 
to social security credit cards, driver's license and 
theft of passport, if you believe that testimony and if 
you find it relevant, cannot be considered except as to 
the issue of consciousness of guilt. You may not 
consider that evidence as proof that the defendant had 
a tendency to commit any of the crimes for which he has 
been indicted or that he octed in conformity with that
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1 tendency.

2 MR. McTIGUE; Yes.

3 THE COURT: Now, let me add that language and
4 type it in.
5 Now, is there anything else?

€ MR. SAMPSC»4: Judge, we have a stipulation
7 with regard to the testimony of Carlos Marquinez.
8 THE COURT: All right.
9 MR. SAMPSON: With regard to apparent changes

10 in the testimony.
11 THE COURT: All right. Would you take it

12 into my law clerk: You guys go into my law clerk and
13 have him type that up.
14 Did you each receive a copy of the proposed
15 verdict sheet?
16 MR. SAMPSON: Yes.

17 THE COURT: Is it okay?
18 MR. SAMPSON: Yes.

19 MR. McTIGUE: Can I just find it. Judge?
20 (Jury brought out)
21 THE COURT: All right. Mr. Sampson, ready?
22 MR. SAMPSON: Yes, your Honor.
23 THE COURT: You may begin.
24 MR. SAMPSON: Ladles and gentlemen, on behalf
25 of the defendant and myself, I would like to thank you

Summation-by Mr. Sampson ?

1 for your time and attention in this extrenaly important
2 case.

3 I know that over tRfe past, I forget now if
4 It's two cr we're going on weeks, that we have
5 taken up a lot of your time and burdened you at times
6 with other matters that you really doesn't want to hear
7 about. But the simple truth is, that over the course
8 of time, we have discovered through practice this is
9 the best way to assure that an individual on trial

10 charged with extremely serious charges can receive a
11 fair consideration of the case against him.
12 You know in the beginning of this case we
13 went through a process to try to pick 14 of you to be
14 jurors in this case. And what we really wanted, as we
15 explained to you, is to have individual.s who could
16 judge this case without bias, or passion, cr prejudice,
17 and you could come together using your collective
18 wisdom, your collective experience, your God*given
19 common sense, to make a determination as to the guilt
20 or innocence of another human being.
21 In this case that's all we ask you to do is
22 to judge this evidence fairly, without bins, without
23 passion, and we think that in this particular case,
24 that after that is said and done, you will conclude

25 that the State of New Jersey has failed to prove its
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Summation-by Mr. Sampson 
case beyond a reasonable doubt against Luis DaSilva.

Now, I would imagine that in a case this 
serious, that it's really hard to make a determination 
without passion. Ne're talking about the loss of a 
human life here. Felix Chininin, on the early morning 
hours of November the 4th, 2002, was murdered. There's 
no question about that. It was probably in the 
commission of a robbery. It's hard to tell, because 
the evidence in this case is unclear.

Nonetheless, ladies and gentlemen, your 
determination here today, and what you have to decide 
as jurors, is whether the State of New Jersey has 
proved this case against Mr. DaSilva beyond a 
reasonable doubt.

Now, we start with certain considerations.
We have already explained to you that Mr. DaSilva 
appears here today as the result of an indictment.
Now, you know what an indictment is. We have explained 
that to you. It simply tells the defendant what the 
charges are against him and you know from the testimony 
that some of the witnesses appeared before the grand 
jury, some of the witnesses told their version of the 
events to the grand jury, and those people made a 
determination that there was at least sufficient 
evidence at that point for the defendant tc stand

8

Summation-by Nr. Sampson 9

trial.

What you also tnow. though, I think I told 
you in the beginning and I w{ 11 tell you .low, is that 
the defendant wasn't reprec«nted. The defendant 
doesn't have an attorney there. The defendant does not 
at that point have an opportunity r.o ask questions of 
witnesses, and we think if we had t^en there before the 
grand jury —

MR. McTIGUE: Objection, Judge.
THE COURT: <^jection sustained.
MR. SAMPSON: Though we were not there, what

we say is nov; is our opportunity to ask questions, to 
ask difficult questions of witnesses. That is to say, 
now we have the opportunity to ask the witnesses about 
the inconsistencies ar.d contradictions in their various 
statements. And we believe that t«hen you consider all 
the various contradictions and inconsistencies in this 
case, you will see that the State has failed to prove 
its case beyond a reasonable doubt.

As I have explained to you before, at this 
point the defendant is still entitled to what's called 
a presumption of innocence. That is, as you sit hare 
right now, the defendant has to be presumed innocent of 
the charges against him, and that presumption of 
Innocence stays with him unless and until, after
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1 considering all of the evidence in this case, you find
2 that the State has proved its case beyond a reasonable
3 doubt.

4 And, ladies and gentlemen, I tell you today
5 that in our estimation, based upon our review of the
6 evidence, we believe that the State has failed to meet
7 its burden.
8 In reviewing the evidence in this case, you,
9 ladies and gentlemen, are the judges of the facts.

10 It's going to be your individual and collective
11 determination that decide what the facts are in this
12 particular case.
13 Judge Vazquez is the judge of the law, he
14 controls the proceedings. But you, ladies and
15 gentlemen, individual and collectively, make a
16 determination as to whether or not the State has proved
17 its case beyond a reasonable doubt.
18 And the burden in this case, the burden is
19 always on the prosecutor. Under our system of justice,
20 the defendant doesn't come in and have to prove that he

21 didn't do it, the State has to prove that he did it,
22 and they have to do it through clear and convincing
23 evidence from witnesses who come here and put their
24 hands on the bible and swear to tell the truth.
25 Now, as I told you in the beginning, and as

Summation-by Mr. Sampson 11

1 is aptly clear from the evidence in this case, the
2 witnerses, there are many witnesses, and you remember
3 at the beginning of case when you were sitting bark
4 there in the well of the courtroom and we told you
5 about this case, and me and the prosecutor read to you
6 a list of potential witnesses, and it must have been
7 about 100 different names that you heard of people who
8 could possibly be involved in this case.
9 But, you know, ladies and gentlemen, after

10 you listened to that entire list of people who may have
11 evidence in this particular case, there aren't 100
12 witnesses here. The State's case really boils down to
13 two witnesses: Carlos Marquinez and Alex Tixi.
14 I say that, ladies and gentlemen, because in
15 this case, despite all the investigation and everything
16 that took place after the events of November the 4th,
17 2002, there is no evidence against the defendant.
18 You, ladies and gentlemen, will have before
19 you in the juryroom photographs, you will have physical
20 evidence in this case, you will see pictures of the
21 crime scene, and you will recall the testimony of
22 witnesses.

23 Remember Investigator Berrien coming in and
24 describing her arrival at the crime scene over there
25 first on Thomas Street, and then over on Virginia
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Summation-by Mr. Sanpson 12

Street? And she told you when she got to Virginia 
Street it was a bloody scene, that there was blood 
smeared all over the interior of the Lincoln Town Car. 
There was blood pools on the floor. There was blood 
all over the seats. There was brain matter on the back 
seat of the vehicle. And one would expect under those 
circumstances that the State, as it did, would conduct 
a scientific evaluation of all the physical evidence in 
this case. And they would make an effort to find any 
blood evidence that would link the defendant, Luis 
DaSilva, to that crime scene. And you heard the 
investigators tell you that Investigator Betrian, and 
Detective Vitiello, and Fernard Williams, the crime 
scene investigator, that despite their best efforts and 
using the best scientific means available today, there 
is not a bit of physical evidence that links that 
defendant to this case. There's no blood evidence.
There is no fingerprint evidence. There's no DMA 
evidence. There is no hair or fiber evidence in this 
particular case. No objective scientific evidence 
which would link that defendant to the horrific events 
of November 4th, 2002. After conducting their 
Investigation for a period of time, they still '.tad no 
proof linking the defendant to this particular cane.

Now, at some point, ladies ana gentlemen, and
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S'jmmation-by Mr. Sampson 13

I should tell you this up front, my recollection of the 
test.imony doesn't mean r thing. >\nd if 1 say something 
during the course of my prevontation tha*- is contrary 
to your recollection of this, it's your recollection 
that controls. No one is trying to mislead you. It's 
just that over the course of two w^eks, maybe the 
recollections have changed, have clanged or varied.
But what's going to happen is at aome point when you go 
into the juryroom, you are going to talk about it with 
each other and, again, it's your collective 
recollection of the facts that controls. Okay.

But it serns to me that the events in the 
days just after November the 4th, the State was lacking 
any witnesses. Remember Investigator Berrian and 
Detective Vitiello telling you that when they went to 
the crime scene on Thomas Street, they then went to the 
crime scene on Virginia Street. She went to the extent 
of canvassing all the people who lived in the area. No 
one saw anything.

They brought the dog, 
to search. They were unable to
No one saw who left the vehicle there. No one saw who 
parked the cab there. And that was about November the 
4th, the early morning of November the 4th.

You will also recall that three or four days

the K-9 Unit out there 
make any determination.
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1 later, three or four days later Gloria Nieves, a
2 dispatcher at Millennium Cab Company, got a phone call.
3 She was able to give a date and the approximate time
4 that phone call was received. She said that the call
5 was from a woman, an older and mature woman is her
6 testimony. She said that the woman spoke to her in
7 Spanish and the woman had an Ecuadorian accent, and the

8 woman told her essential they had knowledge about the
9 death of Mr. Chininin, and the caller gave her a name.

10 That's where El Chato comes from. El Chato is Alex
11 Tixi.

12 Nell, based on that information, they began
13 to do an investigation and Gloria Nieves told you that
14 just after she spoke to this woman, that Mr. Chininin's
15 father also gave her a call and wanted to know what the

16 phone call was about, and he coincidentally knew this
17 guy Alex, El Chato. And in this case there are a lot
18 of apparent coincidences.
19 For example, Alex Tixi, El Chato, just
20 happens to live in the same house as the victim's runt
21 and uncle, the same house of the same aunt and uncle
22 who happen to get Felix Chininin's cell phone. So the
23 ceil phone bill was coming to that location and che
24 police were doing an Investigation of that particular
25 house.

Summution-by Mr. Sampson 15

1 Nell, based on that, ladies and gentlemen, do
2 you think that getting that phone call that has
3 specific information that wah, sufficient '‘o lead them
4 to Alex Tixi, would it be unreasonable to ask that they
5 speak tc the individual who maue the phone call?
6 I raise that, ladies and gentlemen, because
7 you will have before you cell phone records. And under
8 the cell phone records that you will have a chance to
9 look at, they listed all the phone calls on that

10 particular date, the date in which Gloria Nieves got
11 the telephone call. And as you go through, I guess
12 about five pages of phone calls, it's my opinion that
13 most of these appear to be of extremely brief duration.
14 Most of the phone calls last a matter of seconds: 10,

15 20, ?0 seconds, a minute.
16 As you go down this list of phone calls, you
17 will see one which lasted approximately eight and a
18 half minutes. And you recall the investigator that
19 Gloria Nieves said that the phone call came in around
20 10 o'clock, and you will see that approximately 9:46 on
21 this day there was a phone call that lasted about eight

22 minutes, eight and a half minutes.
23 Now, that phone call was of soew interest to
24 the State, to the investigators. And au a result of
*5 that, they obtained a communications data warrant and

r ' 'i' -
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1 they explained to you what that is because you just
2 can't go to the phone con4>any and say: Give Be
3 Information. It has to be through a warrant.
4 And you know that they wanted to know who
5 placed this call, who placed the call to Millennium
6 Cab, and they got a name, and they got an address, and
7 they got a phone number to that person.
6 One of the things that sticks out in my sdnd
9 in this case during the examination of Investigator

10 Berrian, I asked her did she over speak to that person,
11 and her response was no, I didn't have to. It seems to
12 me, ladies and gentlemen, based upon all the evidence
13 in this case, that that is a critical witness. That is
14 someone who needed to be talked to. That is someone
15 who had information. And that is someone who was not
16 talked to.
17 The reason that person wasn't talked to was
18 they said they had Alex Tixi, that Alex Tixi gave
19 statements in this particular case, and the trail
20 leading to Luis DaSilva began with Alex Tixi.
21 Now, you will recall that Alex Tixi, El
22 Chato, was initially interviewed by the police and when
23 he was initially interviewed, said he didn't knov
24 anything. They confronted him. They said: Me don't
25 believe you. And he gave another statement. This is

Summction-by Mr. Saxpson 1?

1 the statement, ladies and gentlemen, that involved him
2 and Carlos Marquinez making a trip to Penn Station to
3 pick up Mr. DaSilva. They said they got a phone call,
4 they were just driving around' Harrison 7:30, 7:45, 8

5 o'clock on a Monday morning, got a phone call from
6 the defendant telling them to pick him up.
7 Nell, ladies and gentlemen, you know now that
8 the statement that Mr. Tixi gave wa.s a complete
9 fabrication, that what was contained in there wasn't

10 true.

11 Nell, ladies and gentlemen, let me ask you
12 this. In this particular case, the witness gives a
13 statement saying that he got a phone call aarly in the
14 morning, that he went and picked up a man at Penn
15 Station. Part of the investigation, would it be
16 unreasonable to ask, did the State trace that phone
17 call? Nere they able to establish that that phone call
18 was actually made? If I’m not mistaken, Cr.rlos
19 Marquinez has a pager. Did anybody establish that he

20 got a page at that time and what phone number the call
21 came from?
22 I.et me also ask you, if a witness says it's •
23 o'clock on a Monday morning, I'm at Penn i)tation in
24 Newark. Now, can you imagine, ladies and gentlemen,
75 that after the intense security down there at Penn
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Suiamation-by Mr. Sampson 1C

Station, now a man is walking around in Pann Station 
covered in blood with this object, and it could be a 
radio, CD case, or something wrapped in a white tee 
shirt covered in blood at Penn Station, and no one, no 
one asked him a question?

Ladies and gentlemen, all vre're saying is 
that you have to use your collective wisdom, your life 
experience. Do you think if an individual walking 
around covered in blood with blood stains on him at 
Penn Station at 8 o'clock on & Monday morning with all 
the people there, all the security, that that's 
possible? But they took that at face value. They took 
that statement at face value.

He also has — he also gave a scenario later 
on where he completely changes his story. And you 
recall Mr. Tixi telling you the story about going to 
the Budweiser — going past Budweiser on 1 t 9 to 
Elizabeth, and he says he picked up Mr. DaSilva over 
near Budweiser in Elizabeth. Nell, you also now know 
that that story is untrue.

But, ladies and gentlemen, that is where the 
investigation began, and that's how Mr. DaSilva got 
thrown into the case. They spoke to Carlos Marquinez, 
and you know the various stories that Mr. Marquinex has 
told over time.

Sunmation-by Mr. Sampson 19

Finally, when he comes to court a year and a 
half later, his story has changed again. He is now 
testifying that on the early >»orning hours of November 
the 4th, he had been at hie mother's house, okay. He 
says he had been there all day with Alex Tixi and they 
were drinking beer. And he said they were fairly 
intoxicated. Ha says that at that liour in the morning 
his mother comes and knocks on the doer and annomices 
that someone is outside blowing the horn.

Nell, has anyone confirmed that? Hava you 
heard any testimony affirming that there was someone 
outside blowing the horn? Ha says that he was there 
with his family. There's no family, there's no 
testimony from his family members.

Ladies and gentlemen, Carlos Mazquinez in 
this case has a motive, has a bias, has a reason to 
lie. You know this because he's already told you he's 
got charges pending in two counties and as the 
prosecutor has told you or will tell you, there is no 
formal deal for Mr. Marquinez. But he is testifying in 
the hope that he can help himself with these cases.
And you know that he's got one case, one drug case with 
Alex Tixi, and you know Alex Tixi has already pled 
guilty on that, and part or his deal is that he testify 
here.
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Summation-by Mr. Sampson 20

Mr. Marquinez has a charge, drug charges 
pending in Hudson County as well as up in Somerset 
County, in which he has got a burglary, attempted 
burglary charge, a conspiracy, and you know that case 
involves something about a gun.

So, ladies and gentlemen, Mr. Marquinez has a 
reason to be here to testify against the defendant.
More Importantly, according to the testimony, Mr. 
Marquinez and Mr. Tlxi had been to Mr. DaSilva's house.

You know that Mr. Marquinez told you that on 
at least one occasion he had been to Mr. DaSilva's 
house, and there was no one home. Mr. DaSilva has also 
told you that on prior occasions when Mr. Marquinez had 
been to his house, he had advised him that there was a 
police officer, be careful, don't go to the front of 
the house with beer or drinks, because there's a cop 
that lives there. So Carlos Marquinez has the 
opportunity and the motive to do the break-in at 27 
Brill Street.

You know there are certain things that 
people — well, we have certain phrases for it in our 
society. You don't do certain things near where you 
live. And would it make sense for Carlos, would it 
make sense for Luis DaSilva to break into the house of 
the guy who lives downstairs? Does it make any sense?

Summation-by Mr. Sampson 
Nhy would he do that and create all that heat and 
pressure in his own home? It doesn't make any sense. 
He's a working man. He's wc^king. He's got a family. 
You heard about the construction business that he's 
engaged in. So why would he cio this? Why would he 
break into the house downstairs? Why would he be out 
committing a robbery when that very morning he's on his 
way to work down in Baltimore or down in Maryland, and 
you know the police must have believed he was working 
there because we had Detective Vitiello telling you one 
day they set up a surveillance down in Penn Station 
because they believed he was going down there. You 
heard the State tell you about advising tlie authorities 
down in Maryland to be on the look-out for him during 
that period of time.

So, ladies and gentlemen, what I'm saying in 
this particular case is that the evidence, the evidence 
in this case is a fabrication. Carlos Maiquinez and 
Alex Tixx had every reason to make up this story.

The Court is going to tell, the Court is 
going the tell you about the difference between direct 
evidence and circumstantial evidence. Remember the 
testimony -- I'm sorry, the example the v\idge gave you 
about the issue of whether or not it was raining or 
snowing outside, and he said direct evidence is some

21

'f-
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1 someone tells you they see it. Circumstantial, if you
2 90 to bed and it's dry out, and in the morning you wake
3 up, everything is wet, the car is wet, the driveway is
4 wet, there's water on the window.
5 Ladies and gentlemen, in this particular case
6 the circumstantial evidence has been created by Carlos
7 Marquinez and Alex Tixi and they have every motive to
8 fabricate this. Why? Because you know they were in
9 Newark on that morning, according to them. They were

10 in the vehicle. They had Mr. -- they had the
11 defendant's car. They had a motive, and he had
12 opportunity to commit this particular crime. They say
13 they were there. There's connections between them.
14 They have got Carlos Marquinez's step dad is a cab
15 driver lor Classic Cab, which is connected to
16 Millennium Cab. You have Alex Tixi living in the same
17 house as Mr. Chininin's family. You have a number of 
16 connections between them and the crime.
19 And I suggest to you, ladies and gentlemen,
20 that when all is said and done, the State has not been
21 able to tie this defendant to the offense except
22 through the testimony of these two guys.
23 As a consequence, rather than dealing with
24 the absence of any physical evidence, there's no
25 fingerprint evidence, no blood evidence, DMA evidence.

Summation-by Mr. Sampson 23

1 hair or fiber evidence. There are a number of other
2 things that have been thrown into this care on the
3 theory that if you throw 4>nou«>.h stuff against the wall,
4 something ray stick. So you have heard all this

5 testimony about threats, about conversations between
6 the defendant and Alex Tixi and Car .'os Marquinez.
7 Ladies and gentlemen, let me ask you this.
8 You know that Mr. Marquinez and Mr. Tiui have told you
9 a number of untruths in this case. There's no way

10 around it, that is what has happened.
11 Mr. DaSilva says that on the later date, and
12 for the first time in over a year, he sees Carlos
13 Marquinez. Now, imagine that someone has fabricated a
14 story about you, told things that weren’t true, got you
15 thrown into a homicide. The first time that you see
16 them, is it unreasonable that you might curse at them?
17 That you might say a few things to them? Does it make
18 you guilty of anything? Ho. It makes you pissed off
19 because you have been lied about. In this case that's
20 what happened.
21 In this case, ladies and gentlemen, you heard
22 a number of threats and allegations. They have no
23 relevance to this particular case. In thiu case,
24 ladies and gentlemen, you heard about flight. You have
25 heard the defendant tell you that he left af^er the
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1 events in question. We don't deny It, that sonetiae in

2 late Novenber, late November, he took off. But, ladles
3 and gentlemen, you are also aware that from November
4 the 4th, up until the end of November, the defendant
5 was present. The defendant was present In New Jersey
6 working, that they knew he was In the area. That you
7 have — you have heard the police report of November
6 the 24th up in Nest Orange when Mr. DaSilva reported
9 his car stolen.

10 So up until that petlod of time, at least
11 through November the 24th, for three weeks after this,
12 he was there. That's not flight, ladies and gentlemen.
13 That's not running, at least right afterward. He says
14 when he heard about the charges, he told you he's a

15 Brazilian national, that he has been here for a number
16 of years, that he thought that if he were arrested,
17 that he would get held on an extremely high ball. That

16 he would lose everything that he worked for. You heard

19 testimony that he has now been locked up for 16 months.
20 That's exactly what he was afraid of.
21 Did he have a false driver's license? Yes.

22 Did he have fake I.D.? Yes. Fortunately, in our
23 society, apparently a lot of people do it because you
24 need a driver's license, you need identification. It

25 does not make you guilty of murder.

Summation-by Mr. Sampson 2!

1 Now, ladles and gentlemen, there are a lot
2 of — there's a lot of evidence in this CJ^se. There

3 are a lot of statements wnich have been mv^de. You know
4 that a number of the witnesses have given two or three
5 statements in this case. They *n^'»e given two
6 statements. They appeared before the grand jury. They

7 have appeared hore at the time of t)*ial.
6 The sad truth is that these statements are
9 all contradictory and at variance with each other.

10 They don't make sense. Ihey don't hang together.
11 Josephine Garcia says tne entire transaction in her
12 home took place in the dark, the lights were never on.
13 There was no way for her to see. Did she over tell you
14 why, if someone comes in and is hiding something u;.der
15 the bed, as she said the computer was, that she didn't
16 say anything? Doesn't tell you that.
17 There's no searches of any of the homes.
18 Alex Tixi's home was never searched. Carles

19 Marquinez'a home was never searched. No physical
20 evidence was ever recovered.
21 In this case, ladies and gentlemen, the State
22 has failed to prove its case beyond a reasonable doubt.
23 It's not a question of whether or not «#e have sympathy
24 for Nr. Chininin's family, because we do. The question
2'j is whether, considering all of the evidence in this
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particular case, the State has proved its case beyond a 
reasonable doubt.

And after you consider all the evidence here, 
the State has failed to do so. Thank you.

THE COURT: Sir, you need a moment?
MR. McTIGUE: Yes, please.
THE COURT: All right, ladies and gentlemen,

you will go into the juryroom for just a few minutes 
and then we'll bring you back to hear Mr. McTigue's 
closing arguments.

(Jury excused)
THE COURT: Is there something you wanted to

say or you just wanted to set up?
MR. McTIGUE: I just wanted to set up.
THE COURT: Yeah, sure.
(Recess)

(Jury brought out)
THE COURT: Mr. McTigue.
MR. McTIGUE: Your Honor, counsel, ladies and

gentlemen of the jury. When we first startea this case 
and I had the opportunity to address you in an opening 
statement, 1 told you that the end of case that we 
would have an opportunity to speak again, at idiic!. time
I would make comment on the evidence that's before vou.

I would like to thank; you for your patience.

Summation-by Mr. McTigue 27

for your attendance. We have taken you away from home, 
family, and your occupations, but you are ^bout to 
shoulder an important responsibility, a reoponolbility 
that's been shouldered by wvery jury that's ever sat in 
this country in a criminal ca»*>.

Hundreds, if not thousands of jurors before 
you, you are going to share the comnsn bond that iu our 
jury system to make a determination of guilt or 
innocence. The time for lawyers is closing, with a.ll 
due respect to Judge Vazquez who will charge you on the 
law, his time is about to end, and your function, your 
time as judges of the facts is about to begin.

The truth is what you determine it to be.
You will have to consider all the evidence. Consider 
it as a whole, not searching for guilt, not hunting for 
reasonable doubt, but ascertaining all of the evidence 
to get a picture of what is the truth.

This has been a fairly lengthy trial. You 
heard from approximately 21 witnesses. People have 
testified In three languages: English, Spanish and
Portuguese; and you have heard from a number of 
experts. But we are here for one central reason: The

death of Felix Chininin.
We know from the testimony of Cr. Shaikh, t«e 

know and we will see the photos that Felix Chininin, at
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the age of 19 years, died from a contact wound to the 
back of the head. Somebody, and the proofc indicate 
Luis DaSilva, took this gun and put it to the back of 
his head and pulled the trigger and took his life and 
everything that he would have done In his life. Cold, 
hard act, brutal In nature. Motivation: Robbery,

ladles and gentlemen.
You have heard from a number of witnesses In 

the trial, and each one of those witnesses has 
presented you with some fact or facts Important to this 
case. There have been search warrants executed, three 
in number. There have been electronic search warrants, 
communications data warrants issued. There has been 
significant forensic testimony. All of those tests, 
all of those warrants provide you with additional 
information.

You have heard from witnesses Whose 
credibility you will have to test. When Judge Vazquez 
gave you his introductory remarks before we started 
this case, he mentioned certain tests as far as 
credibility. How do you tell if a person is telling 
the truth? Hell, you look at them. You look at their 
demeanor. You consider their interest in the caae.
You consider: Are they telling me the truth? Are they
telling me part of the truth? Or are they telling the
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entire truth? What motivatior> do they have to lie?
Why say something? And those are tests you are going 
to hare to look at. You are going to have to determine 
if you think that something was untrue, well, what's 
the motivation behind that unl..uth? And is it an 
untruth about something that's important, something 
that's material tc the case, something that would cause 
you to change your mind?

Just an example of what is material and what 
I'm wearing a tie. I have %*orn a tie every day 

the course of the trial that X monopolized youi 
Do you remember what color tie X was wearing 

four days ago? And Is It important? You know the X 
was here monopolizing your time with counsel and tho 
Court, but whether you can recollect that detail X 
submit is immaterial to the larger picture.

Look to the relationships the witnesses enjoy 
with each other. Consider the proofs you have heard. 
This is a crime which occurred Involving many people 
with within a tight-knit immigrant community. People 
know each other. Information travels quickly. People 
band together. They trust each other. They help each 
other out as every Immigrant group In our history has*
It helps explain how things happen. You can use your 

common sense and your collective sense of community

isn't.

dur>ng

time.
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1 about which you represent in reaching these
2 determinations. Very often tests are Important,
3 searches are important, not so much for what they find,
4 but for what they don't find.
5 In this instance no cash proceeds were found
6 on the cabby who collects cash during the course of his
7 business. No wallet for Identification vras found on
8 the body of Felix Chininin. No computer was found, but
9 cosqputer cables were found. No gun was found

10 immediately, but shell casings; and the bullet that took
11 Felix Chininin's life were found. No fingerprints were
12 found. And is there an explanation for that? Where

13 you find a deficit, is there an explanation for it?
14 Where the police have tried to accomplish something but
15 have not succeeded, is there an explanation?
16 And I think many of the questions that were
17 raised by counsel during his summation are explainable
18 through the facts that you have heard.
19 Counsel has submitted that the State has
20 failed to carry its burden to prove the guilt of Luis
21 DaSilva beyond a reasonable doubt. I spoke to you,
22 ladies and gentlemen, that within this case there are
23 certain lines or chains of evidence that establi.*h the
24 guilt of Luis DaSilva beyond any doubt. These are
25 chains of evidence which become chains that bind Luis

Summatlon-by Mr. Mctlgue 31

1 DaSilva firmly to the guilt that he must bear tor the
2 death and robbery of Felix Chlnini'n.
3 And what's interest^.ng, ladies «nd gentlemen,
4 in this case, because there's been some comment about
5 fabrication, concoction, is tiiei *’he circumstances, as 
€ you heard from people who st<ore oath, indicates that
7 this was a broad ranging investigation.
8 The police used the toolr at their disposal
9 as best they could. They gathered as much information

10 as they could quickly, because if you don't get it
11 within the first few days, ladies and gentlemen, common
12 experience tells us you are not going to get it. There

13 was hard work and exposure of shoe leather, the old
14 fashion way, going out and speaking to people, lining
15 things up and importantly, ruling people out. No rush
16 to judgment, and we'll discuss that.
17 But some of the most important evidence in
18 this case, despite all the hard vfork, despite all the
19 effort, despite the hours of time spent sifting through
20 pages of telephone sources, comes from people who
21 weren't even investigating this case, they tfere
22 investigating other crimes: The Nest Orange Police
23 Department, the New York City Police Department, the
24 Belleville Police Department. From people not
25 associated with Luis DaSilva, people who may have met
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1 him tangentially.
2 All that belies concoction, ladies and
3 gentlemen, and it's good to work hard. But sometimes
4 it's good to have luck on your side. And quite
5 frankly, in the investigation of this case, there were
6 some breaks, things that one did not expect to yield
7 very inq)ortant. information.
e You your recollection has to govern, ladies
9 and gentlemen, as I discuss facts, if you disagree

10 collectively with me, what you say goes. But it's been
11 siiggested, in fact, you almost have to find< in order
12 to acquit Luis DaSilva, that everybody he knows who
13 testified in this courtroom lied. Alex Tixi has to
14 lie. Carlos Marquinez has to lie. Josephine Garcia
15 has to lie. Nicholas Castro Garcia has to lie. Look

16 at the connections among these people. See if that
17 holds true.
18 I mentioned chains of evidence, ladies and
19 gentlemen. And the first chain starts with Millennium
20 Cab. People told you Important things. There are a
21 group of people who were called, they were all called
22 for a reason. You heard about the last hours of Felix
23 Chininin on this earth. He had a very poignant
24 snapshot of a young man who was about to die.
25 He was 19, obviously strong. Dr. Shaikh was
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1 surprised, quite frankly, by certain things, and we'xl
2 discuss that. Nineteen, happy in his work, horsing
3 around with his fellow em|>loy»es. Gloria Nieves told
4 you about that, about his squeibbles about who picks up
5 who, who pays and who gets to go home, things of that
6 nature. Not trouble, not in fear of anyone, just a
7 young guy trying to get by doing a tough job, who had a
8 new toy, something that he enjoyed, something he had In
9 his car, a computer or DVD player that shows movies.

10 It's ironic, Mr. Reyes told you this, the
11 last movie he ever saw was Sniper. You got a taste of
12 that. There were no troubles or difficulties in his
13 life. There was nobody he feared. You were able to
14 track his movements up to a point through dispatch
15 records, the last dispatch call 2:56 a.m. You know he
16 had a cell phone. The last call was minutes before
17 list death.
18 You heard a lot about CVW, and 11'ce any other
19 tools, they have their uses, they have their
20 limitations. Investigator Berrien told you about that.
21 It's not a magic bullet. You don't push a button and

22 something pops out. You get data that may or may not

23 be useful, siay not point you to a person. Some calls
24 are captured, some aren't. The clocks and timing are

25 only as good to the person looking at the clock and
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noticing the call which may or may not match different 
clocks carry different times. Did they give you 
something that is exact? No. Do they give you an 
approximation that allows the police to use it as one 
of many tools? Yes. And those tools are used.

One thing the records will not tell you is 
who is on the phone. It's not a tape recorder. Who 
ever has access to a phone may be using it. The fact 
that a call came in from a phone by itself establishes 
nothing.

And, again, we all in this day and age tend 
to get caught up in technological magic. But at the 
end of the day all that technology can do, in many 
instances, is just point us in the direction, tell us 
an area where we might want to look, and very often it 
turns up nothing.

For instance, Kathleen Anostrong, the lady 
they interviewed by Detective Vitiello, the dispatch 
records, conqputerized records, we know she made a call 
from 330 Woodside, the last call ever received from 
Felix Chininin via dispatch.

In talking to Ms. Armstrong: I didn't call.
Likewise, a anonymous callers are anonymous callers.
They provide the basis of information. There's no way 
to prove the person made a call. Tnere's no way to

Summetion-by Mr. McTlgue 3!

know what they said was reliable or was it based on 
something they heard from somebody who heard it from 
somebody else. But it's a starting point. It's a tool 
that's used in investigation, and a tool that I suomit 
was used extensively here.

Using those tools, ladies and gentlemen, we 
heard about an anonymous call that came in. Gloria 
Nieves identified three men. Three men. One, El 
Chato. And doing it the old fashion way, asking 
questions. How do people cosg>are notes within a 
close-knit community? They were able to identify an E.' 
Chato and, yes, there are coincidences. We see one or 
two things that are coincidences. Maybe that's 
happenstance. There are far too many things that click 
here, ladies and gentlemen, to be mere coincidence.

These are net accidental bioaps in the night. 
When we come to Alex Tixi, from Alex Tixi wc go to 
Carlos Marquinez. Frc» Carlos Marquinex, vie go to 
Josephina Garcia. And that path leads to where the 
guilt lies: Luis DaSilva.

Alex Tixi and Carles Marquinez have testified 
before you. They are what they are. And they are 
friends of Luis DaSilva. They are the peo:>le that he 
consorts with. They are the people that he goes to 
parties with. They are the people who come to his

rt
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1 house. And they each tell a story that differs
2 slightly, but with one central element. One central
3 element. That it was Luis DaSilva who shot and killed
4 the cabby. Shot him, as Carlos Marquinez said, behind
5 the right ear, took a computer, and robbed him of $120.
6 Concoction? Alex Tixi at first thought it was some
7 sort of radio, maybe a lap top. Why concoct a lap top?
8 Look at the details. Look at the details.
9 Your recollection will have to control. Alex Tixi

10 entered a plea of guilty in Kudson County. There was
11 no deal from the State. None. And importantly, he
12 gave his statements well before any explanation of
13 guilty before a Court. His first statement was given
14 in November of 2002. You will recall the testimony, he
15 was sentenced February of 2004, more than a year
16 afterward. Whether that played any part in his
17 expectation, I submit not. He has been sentenced
18 through the Hudson County courts, through the Hudson
19 County Prosecutor's Office with no contact from the
20 Essex County Prosecutor's Office.
21 The second statement likewise in December was
22 given well before he had to deal with the consequences
23 of his illegal activity. Again, take facts, pu'- them
24 in context as to whether they are im^rtant or not
25 important. You had an opportunity to look at the
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1 demeanor of Alex Tixi, a slight young man, looked
2 scared stiff on the stand for a reason, because he told
3 you he had been threatened.
4 Very shortly ai'ten he gave his first
5 statement, he was called by Lula DaSilva and
6 threatened. He told you he was in fear of his life.
7 And upon questioning again, he changed a little bit to
8 the exact happenstance uf it. But, again, the central
9 focus was still Luis DaSilva. When you look at poople

10 like Alex Tixi and you believe maybe they are
11 concealing something, what are they concealing?
12 I think you got the idea pretty clearly from
13 Alex Tixi that when it comes to murder, ho's in way
14 over his head. And ne wanted nothing to do with this.
15 Did he want to protect himself, put some distance?
16 Yes, he did. He told you that. He wanted to get as
17 far away from this as he could, to the point where he
18 %/ould not even ride home with Fernando, ar he called
19 him. Wouldn't even get into the car with him, even
20 though he was offered a ride.
21 He could appreciate, even such as he is, and
22 you may have to pass some judgment on him, the horror
23 of what had been done, the enormity of the taking of a
24 human life, that's not what he was about. He is what
25 he is. and you will decide what that is. But he's not
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1 a parson who would take a life and everything you saw
2 about him portrays that, communicates it.
3 Carlos Marquinez. Carlos is important
4 because he gives us a number of very important details.
5 Reawmber, things are going on simultaneously. This is
6 not a one-track tape. There are multiple tracks going
7 on here. We're in late November now, the investigatiou
8 has relatively cleared up. We know that Investigator
9 Berrian and Detective Vitiello are doing the best they

10 can from Millennium Cab. They are trying to get
11 records from the telephone company to assist them in
12 the investigation. Their ruling people out also
13 because, remember, Gloria Nieves told you about a call
14 she got. Before Investigator Berrian can get more
15 details of that, she pursued another lead because she
16 had received information regarding a crime involving a
17 cab driver that led her to look with other officials at
18 two people.
19 Miguel Ortiz and Mr. Torres. People weren't
20 concocting things against Mr. DaSilva. They weren't
21 setting him up. The police were doing what wo hope the

22 police should do, looking at all the evidence, sifting

23 to oee where the investigation should proceed. Kothing

24 was cast in stone at this point.

25 And I think it is important for your
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1 understanding to understand that there was a full and
2 complete investigation here, and lir. DaSilva was not
3 focusei on his convenient statement and all the
4 evidence belies that.
5 We come to Carlos H.rqruinez. Mr. Marquinez
6 gives us a t#ealth of important details. He's got
7 charges pending. There are no deals for him. rie gave
8 a statement. He testified before the grand jury, as
9 did Alex Tixi. No deals. He was brought in before

10 those grand jurors and he was asked to testify and did
11 so.

12 And Mr. Saaipson BMde reference to that both
13 during this examination of Mr. Marquinez and during his
14 cross examination of him. Mr. Marquinez, of the two
15 men, was the closer to Fernando. He had known him a
16 little bit longer, socialized with him; in fact, he
17 esiployed him. He employed him to drive his car around.
18 He tells us that he would sometimes engage in drug
19 activity, and he's charged with that, though he further
20 indicates that Mr. DaSilva was not part of that
21 operation. He hired him as a driver to get him back
22 and forth to where he had to go to do his business.
23 And Mr. Sampson has told you Omar Edmonds
24 ominously that he had a gun, but he still, as dxd Mr.
25 DaSilva, enjoys the presusption of innocence, as does
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all people charged with crimes. But not this gun. Me 
know that. And what does Mr. Marquinez do? Now, 
remember, he's had the opportunity, I believe it came 
out during testimony, there may have been some 
discussion between Alex Tixi and Mr. Marquinez before 
he gave his statement. Nell, he did, I submit to you 
what Mr. Tixi did, he tried to distance himself in some 
way. Again, you had the chance to see him, to observe 
him. This is something he wants no part of. He is 
what he is, but he's not a killer. He likewise wants 
no part. Luis DaSilva is something they want to push 
as far away from as they can. Perhaps for selfish 
reasons, they don't need the police examining their 
activities. But they don't want to be part of the 
bloody crime that Luis DaSilva or Fernando, as they 
called him, is guilty of.

They tell basically of Fernando coming, 
having a computer, both indicate the gun. Alex Tixi 
indicated, but not too clear, but he told you he had 
seen a gun like this before. Like this before. But 
Carlos Marquinez gives you B»re information about the 
gxin and about another fact that explains a nuaiber of 
things in this case.

He told you where the g\in came from, right 
down to the location in the closet. Up until this
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point, ladies and gentlemen, .remember the ballistics 
had been examined, they looked at a fragment taken 
durirg the autopsy, they wera able to determine the 
type of shell casing it was, but they had nothing to 
compare it against. Ballistic: testing had the gun 
that early.

But in that chain. Carlo:) Marquinez provided 
a link, and that link wcs tc Officar Paz. He indicated 
it had NPD on it. He told you he never really trusted 
Mr. DsSilva after that. Why? Given his activities, X 
think you know why. wasn't quite sure cbout him.

He told you that Mr. DaSilva had showed him 
this gun, had a chance to look at it. Al^o told you 
about the car that he drove in. He told you that it 
had gloves in it. Had gloves in it. But we know from 
another source; namely, Mr. DaSilva, hiMelf, that he 
did have gloves, not just work gloves, not just work 
gloves, but latex gloves he supposedly used for tile 
setting.

It pieces together, ladies and gentlemen. Re 
told you about a hole. You will have a picture of the 
interior of the car. He told you about a hole. When 
you look at a person's testimony, you have to evaluate 
it, and you have to match verbal testimony against 
verbal testimony. Look to physical evidence tfhich
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1 relates it, interlocks it. Those aren't coincidences,
2 they are called evidence.
3 Yet, still no gun was
4 this point have two people,
5 acquaintances, employees of
6 they saw the proceeds taken from the body of Felix
7 Chininin. They saw the g\in and they wanted no part.
8 Ko part. But gives the police vital information
9 because, again, many tracks at this point, ladies and

10 gentlemen, we are able to identify the gun. And you
11 heard from Lieutenant Russamanno about how that
12 happened. He told you that firearms ara issued to the
13 Newark police officers directly from the department.
14 And before that g\in is issued, in order to assure
15 responsibility on the part of the police officers to
16 determine when their guns are fired or not fired, they
17 undertake a procedure. They fire test rounds, two test
18 rounds to preserve the casing and the shell. In this
19 case the bullet that passed through the head of Felix
20 Chininin and the casing which was found by those
21 detectives that were maligned or called into question
22 by counsel, their efforts paid off. Because now we
23 know what weapon was used to kill Felix Chininin. He

24 still didn't have it though.
25 The chain continues to Josephine Garcia.

Summation-by Mr. McTigue 4:

1 Mentioned almost as an after thought in counsel’s
2 summation, she's very important, ladies ar.u gentlemen,
3 because she comes to you real/.y without anv baggage.
4 Yeah, they didn't wcint you to know perhaps
5 the lady with children, and nMyb« there was some weed
6 in her house, something she doesn't need. But %dtat
7 motive did she have to lie? Remember in Mr. DaSilva's
8 own testimony, this is a lady he met through Carlos,
9 and she was pretty candid about that she was having a

10 fling with him. She was pretty candid about who was
11 running it, the relationship toe. She had been to his
12 house at a birthday party. No reason to lie. No

13 reason to just go along with this.
14 Carlos Marquinez. Her attitude toward him
15 was clear. She was having a thing with a man somewhat
16 younger than her. She saw him when ehe wanted to see
17 him. She knew he had a wife. She knew it was nothing
18 serious there, and she's not going to judge that.
19 That's jusc the way it is. But she tells you that
20 Carlos Marquinez isn't a focal point in her life. It

21 was just something she was doing, and she has no motive
22 whatsoever. She's not under criaU.nal charges. No

23 deals with the State. No reason to tell anything but
24 what she knew.
2.* And in her testimony, it Is limited in
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certain areas as to her observations. But she did 
corroborate or backup a good deal o:f what vas told to 
the police by Alex and Carlos. They being Alex,
Fernando and Carlos, all wound up at her house. She 
heard a knock on the door, ifhether she answered it, or 
her child answered it, half awake, if you know who is 
coming to the door simultaneously that, ladies and 
gentlemen, I leave to you. But she, with no motive to 
lie, nothing over her head, corroborated perhaps the 
most significant p>ortion of their story. Why lie?
Taken together as a whole, I subsdt to you their 
testimony is powerful, convincing. It is mutually and 
externally corroborated.

Chain two. And again I won't regurgitate too 
much of the testimony, but there are things I want to 
point out to you. Chain two starts with Carlos 
Marquinez, which leads to Officer Paz. One thing, when 
you start to determine who or what to give credibility 
to, be consistent, ladies and gentlemen. Apply the 
test to both sides. Mr. Sampson asked you what sense 
does it make for someone to break in when they know who 
the police are. And why break into Officer Paz's house 
who you know? Nell, why break into a house wher^ your 
friend lives and bring trouble on him? Do you go over 
your Buddy's house and cause trouble?
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Remember, Officer was '95 percent sure.
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I

believe was his phrase, that the gun was in the closet. 
He went nuts trying to starch for it, prc^ably in a 
panic when he cane back from vacation. But %fho was in 
a position to know the details of the snves of Officer 
Paz? A person who was over there cv\ce or twice, such 
as Mr. Marquinez? Or a p>erson who was there a good bit 
of time, in a position to know the movements of the 
officer? In a position to know the layout of the 
apartment? That's if Carlos Marquinez even knew that 
Off}cer Paz was a police officer living there. Ke only 
have Luis DaSilva's word for that. Ne only have his 
word for that, as he shoves things over in Mr.
Marquinez's direction. Be consistent in the way yon 
apply the test to the evidence.

Officer Paz took the bullets to Nicholas 
Castro Garcia by accident. By accident. You saw 
Nicholas Castro Garcia, slight young Mexiern man, got 
himself arrested for waving around a gun, which was 
loaded. Somebody hit him, took the gun away from him, 
and called the cops. A real threat to the public 
safety. Shouldn't have had the gun. Ne know that, he 
knows that. He pled guilty to that. Thet*e are not 
aggravated circumstances tfhen you are five foot 
something, as he is, and somebody is able to take a gun
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away from you In front of your friends. Xt*s a little 
embarrassing. He tried to get the gun back. I think 
ic shows you what he is. Can I have my gun back?

He tell us he knows Fernando. He knows 
Fernando. Knew him from when they lived up in the 
Scotland Road area. Mr. DaSilva tells you he lived 
there. He fenced around a little bit as to whether 
was around the corner or a block or two away# whether 
it was on Jefferson or Scotland. But Mr. DaSilva 
corroborated Mr. Garcia.

Now, again, this is by 
testimony, not a person who is a 
not somebody who came Immediately to the mind of Mr. 
Castro Garcia. A casual contact. They lived near each 
other. Both Spanish-speaking, both 
Portuguese-speaking. In the case of Mr. DaSilva, had 
some mutual friends, hung out casually. Hadn't seen 
him in a while. Hadn't seen him in a while.

Where is the animus? Why punch Mr. DaSilva 
in the back? Because the police asked him where he got 
the gun, and he told them. He got the g\ir. from his 
friend Fernando. That was discovered, not through the 
hard work and diligence of Investigator Berrian, i^

Luis DaSilva's 
close friend. This

wasn't discovered through the hard work and endless
hours of Detective Vitiello or ether members of the

Summation-by Mr. McTigue 47

Prosecutor's Office. It was foujid by the West Orange 
Police Department investigating a ruckus in a 
restaurint where a guy had his nun taken away from him.

But the link in that chain was bacx to Mr. 
DaSilva, separated in time. Ai»c sakes sense, as far 
as what's going on with the evidence here.

Mr. Sampson has told you quite so that thoy 
did DNA, they did fingerprints. We weren't able to get 
the car right away. They didn't get the gun right 
away. There was time. Th«.re was time. Time fer a 
clever fellow to get rid of the evidence, to dispose of 
the evidence, to dispose of latex gloves or other 
gloves that may have been used, time before telling 
your wife to pack for Brazil and siiqply discard the 
clothing, time to report your car stolen and give the 
police an address in Maryland that was fictitious. A 
lot of time while you're on the run. Time to dispose 
of the murder weapon. Let's find somebody tc give that 
gun to.

This speaks of a level of planning, ladies 
and gentlemen. This speaks of a level of planning. A 
lot of planning going on here. Never confuse fomal 
education with shrewdness or somebody who thinks they 
are clever. They are not the same. There was plenty 
of time and opportunity for the evidence to be disposed
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1 of. We know why there are no fingerprints. Gloves.

2 The person who thinks they are clever, to put his
3 vehicle in a certain area after, and dropping somebody
4 off after a robbery, clever enough to try to indicate
5 other people. Clever enough to threaten witnesses.
6 And with those things, sometimes are you not entirely
7 clever, details catch up with you, small details you
8 don't expect. One of those surfaced during the search
9 cf the Mitsubishi. The police did their best to

10 fulfill their oath to search and protect. They took
11 that car apart to look for everything they could. And

12 they found something. They found something that didn't
13 make any bit of difference, really. Wasn't important
14 at the time. But you will have it in evidence. They

15 found a key to a motel, the Belleville Motor Lodge. In

16 the Mitsuoishi owned by Tattiana Barbosa, and used by
17 Luis DaSilva.
18 We know from Mr. DaSilva's testimony, weeks,
19 probably months prior to this, that he had a baby. His

20 pregnant wife made him resort to the Belleville Motor
21 Lodge, or would that be Mr. DaSilva some place he was
22 familiar with, some place he would go. It's just an
23 interesting item but, again, lock at the evidence.
24 There is an independent weaving here. Not

25 coincidences, not accidents, not acts of God.

Summation-by Mr. Mc'Tigue 49

1 Evidence.

2 On the threatSi sometimes you get too clever.
3 You t.ireatened a person 4S tkey come clone to you in
4 this very courthouse where justice is to be meted out,
5 and you are smart so you speak in Spanish and
6 Portuguese. But what you don't cov\nt on is that
7 there's a Spanish-speaking police officer there to hear
8 what you say, to hear the tone, and to realize this guy
9 is threatening a witness in my custody. Mr. DaSilva

10 does a good job of controlling what he can, ladles and
11 gentlemen, and it came out during his testimony. There

12 are things that he slips up on, things that he can't
13 control.

14 And among them was Officer Billy Garcia, who
15 told you there was profanity. There he was a s««orn
16 officer assigned to transport him, took it as a threat.
17 It was just: How dare you file false accusations
18 against me? In rough street language. You saw the
19 mind of Luis DaSilva with those threats. The thing
20 they call perhaps a projection. He should have left
21 the country. He should have left the country, as he
22 intended to. And, again, still clever, still pushing.
23 Still pushing. Trying to make sure that Ue cast
24 something broad.
*5 Well, there's no proof, as Mr. Saiwpson says.
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1 other than Alex Tixi's word that he was threatened.
2 Nell, there's proof that Carlos Marqulnez was
3 threatened. Does a leopard change its spots, or do you
4 try to intimidate and intimidate and control?
5 Finally, to the last chain. And that chain
6 deals with Mr. DaSilva's flight after he left, after

7 the murder of Felix Chininin. Me have it from Michel

8 Pereira, Thiago Barbosa Rodrigue:, Geracione Andrde,
9 Police Officer Oliveira, Detective Kelly of the

10 Belleville Police Department. Again, one of those
11 lucky happenstances that lead right back to Mr.
12 DaSilva.

13 He was on the run had his wife packing for
14 Brazil. He had no intention of turning himself in. He

15 was going to get out of the country. He had false
16 Identification, license, social security card, credit
17 cards. You will have them. He had Thiago Barbosa's
18 passport, a young man of similar age. Who if you
19 change your appearance often as Mr. DaSilva has told

20 you he did, you might just get by. And he told you, he
21 intended to use this to get out of the coxintry.
22 You can consider that, ladies and gentlemen,
23 as to consciousness of guilt. Here the man had > wife,
24 a young baby, sending them to Brazil. His father lived
25 in the area, his mother lived in the area, he had

Summation-by Mr. McTigue 5}

1 brothers in the area. He had steady employment in the
2 area, and he nad another brother in Delaware. His

3 entire — this was not a person cast adrift. A

4 friendless immigrant in a foreign and strange lano. He

5 has been here since he was a kid. His family is here.
6 His support network is here.
7 You can consider all that when you consider
8 whether his explanations as to why he fled hold any
9 water. Consider his testimony, ladies and gentlemen,

10 because you know what, the defendant has no burden in
11 the case. Has no burden. But once a defendant chooses
12 to take the stand and testifies, those same tests of
13 credibility that the Judge told you about, that Mr.
14 Sampson asked you to apply to the State's witnesses,
15 apply to Mr. DaSilva.
16 Look at his demeanor. He has no burden of
17 proof, but doss he persuade you? Did his testimony
18 persuade you that four friends of his lied to implicate
19 him? Did he persuade you as to why he fled? He fled
20 because he doesn't want to get caught, not because of
21 his fears about the American justice system.
22 Mere you persuaded by his demeanor and the
23 answers he gave to questions? This is a central event
24 in his life. Stop and think of the implication of what
23 he said to you. Again, we know this is not a young men
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1 adrift. He didn't get off the boat on Ellis Island all
2 by himself with a suitcase. His family is here. He's

3 got people. He's got eagsloyers. He knew at least some
4 time prior to the (>olice going to his house that he was
5 wanted for murder, or was at least, or very least the
6 subject of interest in a homicide investigation.
7 He got all of these people employing him. vfe

8 didn't hear any names. Didn't hear any solid
9 information about the guy who had the company car.

10 Didn't hear anything exact in Baltimore. As he gave
11 answers to the questions, were you satisfied with them?
12 Did it appear to be rehearsed? Did it appear that he
13 would go only so far, as he knew the State had
14 something in writing? And after that, he was free to
15 go where he went.
16 In fact, he turned the table on me once, you
17 will recall. It's your recollection. In response to a
18 question: You got that in writing? You got proof of

19 that? Can you pin me down on this? Or is it open
20 field, broke and running? Nothing that could be
21 traced. Nothing that even over night that could be
22 checked out was brought out. Yet, that which he was
23 caught red-handed with. Not any more. Mas there any
24 explanation as to why his friends conspired against
25 him? Nhat grievances these people bore against him, to

Sumuation-by Mr. MCTigue 5:

thrust on him the most serious charge we have in 
American law? Mere you satisfled> Mere you persuaded? 
Mas his testimony such as to cause you t^ disregard 
that other testimony? In any honest analysis, his 
testimony was limited, unaccepted and uncorroborated.

When the New York City Follce Department 
found him by accident, ladies and (lentlemen, when they 
executed a warrant for somebody th'iy wanted in Now 
York, they got a murderer. Just not the one they were 
looking for. But even in that conduct, leading up to 
that, certainly goes to flight, ladies and gentlemen, 
consciousness of guilt. Guilty men flee. Guilty men 
flee.

But, again, it shows the sianipulative nature 
of Mr. DaSilva, and casts out any credibility he has. 
Michel Periera told you he wanted him out of his 
mother's house because he had seen something on 
television, something in the newspapers.

Me know from Investigator Berrian they 
bombarded the airways and the media In an effort to 
locate Luis DaSilva, who at various times is known as 
Fernando, Michael Santiago, Michael Santiago Figueroa, 
Marcello, Robert Nunex. Me are looking for that 
person. He didn't see anything for the months he was 
hanging out on the run, so he could figure out what wes
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1 going on. Never saw any of that. You believe that?
2 What's the first thing you do If you're a criminal and
3 you think something might be in the papers? You look
4 at the papers, you watch television, check the news
5 stories. Is that an odd proposition that he wanted to
6 know what was going on so he could figure it out?
7 And he took vantage of the trust of Michel
8 Pereira's mother Delzuita. And Mr. Pereira said he
9 thought his mother was right upstairs. So they throw

10 him out with the help of a friend, Geracione Andrade.
11 Geracione Andrade took him. Get him out of my house.
12 That was only after they put him out once, and hs came
13 back in.
14 It's tough to hide when the heat is on. He

15 finally he came back. They finally got Mr. Andrade to
16 get him out. Mr. Andrade took him to the Belleville
17 Motor Lodge. The key. There are no coincidences.
18 There's evidence. And then Mr. Andrade didn't think he
19 was manipulated, and he was. He was. He was. Because

20 Marcello, as he was then known, had to make some sort
21 of a phone call, handed him a hundred dollar bill 4>nd
22 said: Go pay. Go sign in under your name. That was
23 the effect of it. There was no discussion of f'.at, but
24 that's what happened. That's what Marcello then
25 thought was going to happen. You sign up as Marcello,

SuiM*.ation-by Mr. McTlgue 5J

1 and then so when the police gome looking for you, you
2 are now counting on them picking .up Mr. Geracxone. You

3 can't, count on that, that the police officer would
4 actually get the person vho ‘transported you and be able
5 to pick out the nsme and tn* business records of
6 Belleville Hotel. These aren't coincidences, ladies
7 and gentlemen. You are dealing with a manipulative,
8 clever man who is trying to get away with murder. He's

9 been implicated by his friends. He's been immlicated
10 by the physical evidencu. And the lack of certain
11 physical evidence he has provided explanations as to
12 its lack.
13 I respectfully submit to you as you sift
14 through the evidence, look for those linkages. You

15 will finds those are no coincidences. There's proof
16 beyond a reasonable doubt that Mr. DaSilva is guilty as
17 charged.

18 Judge Vazquez is going to charge you on the
19 law. You will be charged on different offenses. You

20 are going to be charged on murder, it's the knowing and
21 purposeful killing of one human being by another. I

22 submit there's more than adequate proof as provided to
23 you by Dr. Shaikh, and provided to you b*« the pictures

24 you have, that that gun was placed there, and the

25 trigger pulled, and Felix Chininin's, who life was
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1 taken by Luis DaSilva, or Marcello, or Fernando, or
2 whatever name you choose, this man.
3 There was also a robbery, ladies and
4 gentlemen. The proofs show that. No cash receipts,
5 wallet, I.D. were taken. As Carlos Marquinez says, he
6 went through his pockets. Look at the scene photos on
7 Thomas Street. There's a pen and change. That's what
8 would fall out of a person's pockets if they had been
9 gone through.

10 There was a robbery,- ladies and gentlown, a
11 robbery of a live person. I told you witnesses weren't
12 called just to call witnesses. Under our law you have
13 to be alive to be robbed. You are not a person unless
14 you are alive. Anthony Narcisco and Officer Greimel
15 told ycu the person they saw, Felix Chinlnin, on the
16 early morning hours he was alive. He was dying. He

17 had but minutes to live. But his life force was still
18 in his body. His young, strong body confounded what
19 Dr. Shaikh thought would be the case. He was able to
20 stagger around. Dr. Shaikh mentioned some jerky-type
21 movement. Mr. Narcisco described drunken type
22 movements. Officer Freimel noted that he was gurgling.
23 And you will have the hospital records too, ladies and
24 gentlemen. As you go to the inventory, which is items
25 not found, but you notice the pulse of 100 was also
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1 noted in that record by people attending Felix Chinxnin
2 in his dying moments. At least tc a charge of felony
3 murder, the Judge will instruct you in dotail on felony
4 murder. Felony murder is b4»^ically the killing, ^he
5 taking of a human life during the course of the flight
6 from a robbery. The Judge will tell you it's not
7 necessary to find that there is an actual intent to

8 kill or cause serious bodily injury resulting in death
9 to find a person guilty of felony murder. Only the

10 death need be proved, and the identity of the person
11 who did the killing. 1 suggest to you, you have an
12 abundance.

13 Tho two charges are not mutually exclusive.
14 You can find both. You can find, and I submit the
15 evidence justifies, a verdict of guilty of willful and

16 purposeful murder, and that that murder was committed
17 during the course of a robbery of Felix Chininin.
18 You will have tampering with Alen Tixi and
19 terroristic threats made to him. And I won't belabor
20 the facts on that. You will have charges of possession
21 of a weapon for an unlawful purpose, that being a
22 robbery and murder of Felix Chininin. And you will
23 certainly have a document that shows that Mr. DaSilva

24 had no right to possess a gun on the night in question.
7.5 There are more facts that X wish I could
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discuss with you, but I have burdened your time 
significantly. But consider all the evidence, even the 
small pieces, ladies and gentlemen, the little pieces 
like Nicholas Castro Garcia telling you that Fernando, 
as he knew him, who worked down at the beach down at 
the shore. Consider the fact of the license, you will 
have it, the picture of Felix Chinlnin was mailed back 
from the man from Philadelphia in the summer months.
Bits and pieces. Are you satisfied with Luis DaSilva's 
story? I submit to you it doesn't hold water. It 
raises more questions than it provides answers.

It's an attempt to muddy the waters, ladies 
and gentlemen. But the truth will shine through. All 
you need to do is consider the evidence as I have 
outlined it to you and your job will not be easy, but 
will be a job you can do without doing violence to any 
of your beliefs and conscious. You will be able to 
fulfill your oath.

Consider the evidence. I ask you to return a 
verdict of guilty on all counts. Thank you, ladies and 
gentlemen.

THE COURT: All right, ladies and gentlemen.
I'm about to read you a charge on the law. Me'^l take 
a five-minute break. Ne will take a five-minute break 
first, and I will bring you out to give you a charge.
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(Recess)

THE COURT: Bring them out.
(Jury brought out)
THE COURT: Al.' ri’ght, ladies and gentlemen,

of the jury. The evidence in this case has been 
presented and the attorneys have completed their 
suBUuations. Ne now arrived at the time when you as 
jurors are to perform your final function in this case. 
And at the outset I want to thank you all for being 
here, for your patience, and for your paying attention 
to the testimony and the evidence as it is has been 
presented.

New, before you retire to deliberate and 
reach your verdict, it is my obligation to instruct you 
as to the principles of law applicable to this case, 
and you shall consider my instructions in their 
entirety and not pick out any particular portion and 
place undue emphasis on it. You must accept the law 
and apply the law to this case as I give it to you in 
this charge. And any ideas of what you have about what 
the law is or should be, or anything the lawyers 
mention about the la, if it differs from what I tell 
you, you have to follow what 1 tell you.

During the courue of trial, 7 was required to 
make certain rulings on the admissibility of evidence.
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either in your presence or outside of your presence. 
These rulings involve qiiestions of law and the cosiments 
the attorneys may have made at the time is not 
evidence. And in ruling, I have decided questions of 
law. And whatever the ruling may have been in a 
particular case, you should understand that was not an 
expression of mine, or an opinion of mine on the merits 
of the case. Neither should any of my rulings in any 
aspect of the trial he taken as favoring one side or 
the other. I just call them cs I see them. Each 
matter is decided on its own merits.

Nhen I use the term "evidence," I mean the 
testimony you have heard from the various witnesses, as 
well as the physical evidence that has been admitted 
into evidence and marked into evidence, and that will 
go with you into the juryroom.

There is also a stipulation. A stipulated 
fact is one that all parties have stated they agree 
upon as being true. You must regard such stipulation 
as proper evidence, and you may accept the tacts 
therein as having been proven. But remoaber, however, 
that you are the sole judges of the facts. And even 
though there is no dispute over the stipulated f^cts, 
you must still determine how much %ireight if any to give 
to them in your deliberations.

I

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8 
9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20 
21 
22

23

24 
75

Court's Charge 61

In this case, the p.nrties have entered into a 
stipulation that in a joint interview by tne attorneys 
with Carlos Marquinez prior to his testiaony, he stated 
that the defendant Luis DaSilva was paid to drive 
Marquinez in the defendant’s Ci.i to his drug activity, 
but the defendant was not involved in the drug 
activity.

Any testimony that I have had occasion to 
strike is not evidence and shall not enter into your 
final deliberations. It must be disregarded by you.
Thar means even though you may remember it, you must 
also remember not to consider it.

Further, if I give a lisdting instruction as 
to how you to use certain evidence, that evidence QV'.st 
be considered by you for that purposes only, and not 
for any other purpose. As jurors, it is your duty to 
weigh the evidence calmly, without any bias, passion, 
prejudice or sympathy, because any influence caused by 
these emotions has the potential to deprive both you, 
the State, and the defendant as to what was promised, 
that is a fair and impartial trial, by a fair and 
impartial jury. Also, speculation and conjecture, or 
any form of guessing play no part in your job as 
jurors.

Now, the defendant stands before you on an
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1 indlctnent returned by the grand jury charging him in
2 eight counts with felony murder, murder, robbery,
3 unlawful possession of a weapon, possession of a weapon
4 for an unlawful purpose, tampering with a witness,
5 terroristic threats, and receiving stolen property.
6 That Indictment Is not evidence of the
7 defendant's guilt on the charges. An Indictment is
8 simply a step In the procedure to bring the case here
9 to you, the jury, to determine as to whether nr not the

10 defendant Is guilty or not guilty on the charges stated
11 In the Indictment.
12 Of course, the defendant has pled not guilty
13 to the charges. And the defendant on trial is presumed
14 to be innocent. And unless each and every essential
15 element cf an offense charged is proved beyond a
16 reasonable doubt, the defendant must be found not
17 guilty of that charge.
16 The State has the burden of proving the
19 defendant guilty beyond a reasonable doubt, and that's
20 a different standard than In civil cases. Some of you
21 may have served In civil case before where you were
22 told that It was only necessary that a fact be proven
23 more likely true than not true. In criminal cases the

24 State's burden Is more powerful than that, it's beyond
25 a reasonable doubt.
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Now, the prosecution must prove Its case by 
more than a mere preponderance of thtt evidence, yat not 
necessarily to an absolute certiilnty. A reasonable 
doubt is an honest and reasonalb'ie uncertainty In your 
mind about the guilt of the defendont after you have 
given full and impartial consideration to all of 
evidence. And a reasonable doubt may arise from tha 
evidence. Itself, or it may arise from e lack of 
evidence. It's a doubt that a reasonable person, 
hearing the same evidence, would have. Proof of a 
defendant's guilt is proof, for example, that leaves 
you firmly convinced of the defendant's guilt.

In this tforld we know very few things with 
absolute certainty. And in criminal case the law docs 
not reqruire proof that overcomes every doubt. If based 
on your consideration of the evidence, you are firmly 
convinced that the defendant Is guilty of the crime 
charged, then you must find him guilty. On the other 
hand, if you are not firmly convinced, than you have to 
give him the benefit of the doubt and find him not 
guilty.

In my preliminary charge when I started the 
case, I explained to you that you were also judges, you 
are judges of the facts in the case. And as judges of 
facts, you are to determine the credibility of the

- . a-i:
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1 various witnesses that testified, as well as «fhat
2 weight to give to their testimony. You and you alone
3 are the sole and exclusive judges of the evidence, of
4 tne credibility of the witnesses, and the weight to be
5 attached to the testimony of each witness. Regardless

6 of what counsel said, or even if I say anything
7 regarding the evidence in the case, it is your
8 recollection of the evidence that should guide you as
9 the judges of the facts. Arguments, statements,

10 remarks, openings and summations that we just had of
11 counsel are not evidence and must not be considered as
12 evidence.

13 Although the attorneys may point out to you
14 what they think is important in the case, you must rely
15 solely on your understanding and recollection of the
16 evidence that was admitted during the course the trial.
17 Whether or not the defendant has been proven
18 guilty beyond a reasonable doubt is for you to
19 determine, based on all the evidence produced during
20 the trial. Comments of counsel are not controlling.
21 It is your sworn and affirmed duty to arrive
22 at a just conclusion after considering all the evidence
23 that was presented during the course of the trial.
24 You know, the function of Court is different.
25 I preside over the trial and keep things going in an

Court's Charge 6.'

1 orderly manner. It's my resp>onsibility to determine
2 any questions of law that arise during the course of
3 the case. And now my fir.al Job is to instruct you on
4 the law which applies to the case, and you must follow
5 that law and then apply it i.o the facts as you find the
6 facts to be.
7 Now, I have sustained objections to some
8 questions asked by counsel, which questions may
9 themselves have contained certain statements or fact.

10 The mere fact that an attorney asks a question and
11 inserts facts or comments or opinions in that questioc,
12 in no way proves the existence of those facts. You

13 will only consider such racts which in your judgment
14 have been proven by the testimony of witnesses or from
15 the exhibits admitted into evidence by tho Court or the
16 stipulation.

17 Any remarks made by me to counsel or by
18 counsel to me, or between counsel, are not evidence,

19 and should not affect or play any role in your
20 deliberations.

21 As I said before, evidence may be either
22 direct or circusMtantial. Direct evidence means
23 evidence that directly proves a fact, without any
24 inference, and which, in itself, if trur, conclusively 
75 establishes the that fact. On the other hand.
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1 circumstantial evidence Mans evidence that proves a
2 fact from which an inference of the existence of
3 another fact may be drawn.
4 You will recall I gave you an example. If a
5 person testifies on the witness stand that they looked
6 out the window at night and saw snow falling, that's
7 direct evidence of the fact that snow was falling. On

e the other hand, if they testified that they looked out
9 the window at night, they didn't see any snow, went to

10 bed, woke up the next morning at dawn and saw snow on
11 the ground, that's circumstantial evidence of the fact
12 that it snowed during the night.
13 An inference is a deduction of fact that may
14 logically and reasonably be drawn from another fact or
15 group of facts established by the evidence. And

16 whether or not inferences should be drawn is for you to
17 decide using your own common sense. Ask yourselves:
18 What is probable? What is logical? What is more

19 reasonable?

20 Now, it's not necessary that all the facts be
21 proven by direct evidence. They may be proven by
22 direct evidence, circumstantial evidence, or a
23 combination thereof. All are acceptable as mean': of
24 proof. And in many circumstances, circumstantial
25 evidence may be more certain and satisfying and

Court’s Charge 6?

1 persuasive to you than even direct evidence is.
2 However, direct and circcunstantlal evidence
3 should be scrutinized and evaluated carefully, because
4 a verdict of guilty may bv' based on direct evidence
5 alone, circumstantial evidence slone, or a combination
6 thereof, so long as it convinces ycu of the defendant's
7 guilt beyond a reasonable doubt.
8 The reverse is also true. A defendant may be
9 found not guilty by direct evidence alone,

10 circumstantial evidence done, or a combination
11 thereof, or a lack of e/idence, so long as it raises in
12 your minds a reasonable doubt as to the defendant's
13 guilt.

14 Now, as the judges of fact, you are to
15 determine the credibility of the witnesses. And in
16 considering whether a witness is worthy of belief and
17 therefore credible, you may take into consideration the
18 following: The appearance and deManor of the witness;
19 the manner in which the witness may have testified; the
20 witness's Interest in the outcome of the trial, if any;
21 the witnesses means of obtaining knowledge of the
22 facts; the witness's power of discernment, Maning
23 their judgment, understanding; the witnese's ability to
24 reason, observe, recollect and relate; the possible
2'i bias, if any, in favor of the side for whom the witness
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testified; the extent to which, if at all, each witness 
is either corroborated, contradicted, supported or 
discredited by other evidence; whether the witness 
testified with an intent to deceive you; the 
reasonableness or unreasonableness of the testimony the 
witness has given; the presence of any inconsistencies 
or contradictory statements; and any and all matters in 
the evidence which serve to support or discredit that 
particular testimony to you.

Through this analysis, as the judges of 
facts, you weigh the testimony of each witness, and 
then determine what weight to give to it. And through 
that process, you may accept all of it, a portion of 
it, or none of it.

If you believe that any witness or party 
willfully or knowingly testified falsely to any 
material facts in the case with an intent to deceive 
you, you may give such weight to his or her testimony 
as you may deem it is entitled. You may believe some 
of it, or you may in your discretion disregard all of 
it.

Now, inconsistencies or discrepancies in the 
testimony of a witness, or between witnesses, ma.; or 
may not cause you to disregard that testimony. Two or 
more persons witnessing an incident, oi hearing
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something, may see or hear it differently. An innocent 
mlsrecollection, like a failure to recoll<&ct, ia not an 
unconuton experience. So in weighing the effect of a 
discrepancy, consider, first,, whether it pertains to a 
matter of importance or an ui.izpcrtant detail. And 
next, whether the discrepancy results from an innocent 
error or a willful falsehood.

Now, on the subject of credibility of the 
witnesses, evidence has been introduced to show that 
certain witnesses currently have pending charges, or 
testified pursuant to a plea agreement, under which 
they pled guilty to lesser charges, await specific 
sentences and dismissal of certain other charges. In 
criminal trials when a witness takes the stand to 
testify, the fact that he or she has charges pending 
against him or her is permitted to be placed before the 
jury for your consideration, not for the general 
credibility to be given to the testimony of that 
witness, but only to evaluate whether or not the 
witness has testified the way he did in hopes or 
consideration of getting favorable treatment from the 
State in connection with those pending charges.

Evidence, Including a witness's statement or 
prior testimony prior to trial, showing that at a prior 
time a witness has said something which is inconsistent
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with testimony at the trial, may be considered by you 
for the purpose of judging the witness's credibility.
It may also be considered by you as substantive 
evidence, that is proof of the truth of what is stated 
in the prior contradictory statement.

Evidence has been presented showing that at a 
prior time a witness has said something, or failed to 
say something which is inconsistent with the witness's 
testimony at trial. This evidence may be considered by 
you as substantive evidence of the proof of the truth 
of the prior contradictory statement, or omitted 
statement. However, before deciding whether the 
Inconsistent or omitted statement reflects the truth, 
in all fairness, you will want to consider all of the 
circumstances under which the statement or failure to 
disclose occurred.

You may consider the extent of the 
inconsistencies or omission, and the lag>ortance or lack 
of importance of the inconsistencies or omission cn the 
overall testimony of the witness as bearing on his or 
her credibility.

You may consider such factors as where and 
when the prior statement or omission occurred, anj the 
reasons, if any, therefor. The extent to which 
Inconsistencies or omissions reflect the truth is for

Court's Charge 7]

you to determine. Consider their materiality and 
relationship to the entire testimony and all the 
evidence in the case; whet., wkere, and the 
circumstances under which the^ were said or omitted, 
and whether the reasons given to you appear to be to 
you believable and logical. In short, consider 
everything that I have already told you about prior 
Inconsistent statements or omission.*,.

You will, of course, consider other evidence 
and inferences from other evidence. Including 
statements of other witi.esses, cr acts of witnesses am*, 
others, disclosing other motives they may have had to 
testify as they did; that is, reasons other than they 
can give.

Now, a hypothetical example to help you under 
what constitutes a prior contradictory statement, and 
more importantly, how it may be used by you is as 
follows. Assume a witness testified that the car was 
blue. And then testimony is introduced, evidence is 
introduced that at a prior time that witness said the 
car was red. Nell, you can use the fact that the 
witness at a prior time said the car was red in judging 
the credibility of that witness, whether h.t was 
believable or not. But you can also use that 
statement, the prior statement that the car was red as



to consider whether 
to comply with
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1 evidence that the car was actually red instead of blue.
2 Now, there's also evidence that you have
3 heard that Alex Tlxi has previously been convicted of a
4 crime. This testimony may be only used in determining
5 the credibility or believability of this witness's
6 testimony. The jury has a right
7 person who has previously failed
8 society's rules, as demonstrated through a criminal
9 conviction, would be more likely to ignore the oath

10 requiring truthfulness on the witness stand than a
11 law-abiding citizen.
12 You may consider in determining this issue
13 the nature and degree of the prior conviction and when
14 it occurred. You are not, however, obligated to change
15 your opinion as to the credibility of this witness
16 simply because of a prior conviction. It is evidence
17 you may consider, along with all the other factors we
18 previously discussed, in determining the credibility of
19 witnesses.

20 A certain rule of evidence is that witnesses
21 can testify only as to facts known by them. This rule
22 ordinarily does not permit a witness to express an
23 opinion. However, an exception to this rule exists in
24 the case of an exert witness who may give his opinion
25 as to any matter in which he is versed, which is
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1 material in the case. In legal terminology, an expert
2 witness is a witness who has some special Knowledge,
3 skill, expertise or trairing that is not possessed by
4 the ordinarily juror, and whc thus may be able to
5 provide assistance for the Dury in its fact finding
6 duties.

7 In this case, the medical examiner. Dr.
8 Shaikh and Lieutenant Ruasamanno were called as
9 experts, and they testified regarding, in the case of

10 Dr. Shaikh, a cause and uanner of death. And in the
11 case of Lieutenant Russamanno, on ballistic^.
12 You are not bound by such experts' opinions,
13 but you should consider each opinion and give it the
14 weight to which you demeanor it is entitled, whethor
15 that be great or slight, or you may reject it.
16 In examining each opinion, you may consider
17 the reason for giving it, if any, and you may also
18 consider the qualifications and credibilit’.' of the
19 expert, it is always within the special function of
20 the jury to decide whether the facts on which an answer
21 of an expert is based actually exist, and the value or
22 weight of the opinion of the exert is dependent upon
23 and no stronger than the facts on which it is
24 predicated.

25 Now, there are in evidence photographs that
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were used to identify the defendant in this case. With 
reference to the photographs submitted into evidence, 
you will notice that many or all of the photographs 
appear to have been taken by law enforcement agencies 
or some other governmental entity. You are not to 
consider the fact that the agency obtained the 
photograph of the defendant as prejudicing him in any 
way. The photographs are not evidence that the 
defendant has ever been arrested or convicted of any 
crime. Such photographs come into the hands of law 
enforcement from a wide variety of sources, including 
but not limited to driver's license applications, 
passports, ABC identification cards, various forms of 
government employment, private employment requiring 
State registration, Including but not limited to Casino 
license application, security guard applications, et 
cetera, or from a variety of other sources, totally 
unconnected with criminal activity.

There is for your consideration in this case 
an alleged oral statement made by the defendant, 
your function to determine whether or not such 
statement was actually made by the defendant, and 
made, whether such statement or any portion of '.t 
credible.

In considering whether or not the statement

It is

if

is
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is actually made by the defendant, and if made, whether 
it is credible, you should receive, weigh and consider 
such evidence with caution In viewing of 
generally—recognized ri:;k eV misunderstanding, and 
accuracy, and error in cookuT.lection, and recollection 
of the verbal communication by the hearer. The 
specific words used and the ability to remember them 
are important to the correct understanding of any 
verbal communication because the presence or absence or 
change of a single %«ord may substantially alter the 
true meaning of even t.ie shortest sentence. You 
should, therefore, receive, weigh and consider sv>ch 
evidence with caution.

Now, with regard to the testimony that you 
heard regarding the alleged threat made by defendant to 
Carlos Marquinez on June 7th of this year, as well as 
testimony regarding defendant's possession of a social 
security card, credit cards and a driver's license in, 
names other than his own, as well as testimony 
regarding a stolen passport, I charge you as follows.

Evidence of ether crimes, wrongs or acts is 
not admissible to prove the disposition of a person in 
order to show that he acted in conformity therewith.
That evidence may be acBaitted for other purposes such 
as to prove consciousness of guilt, when such a matter

■ .’.vJt
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1 is relevant to a matter, material matter in dispute.
2 In this case the evidence regarding the
3 alleged threats, social security card, credit cards and
4 driver's license in different names, and the theft of
5 the passport, if you believe it and if you find it
6 relevant, cannot be considered except as to the issue
7 of consciousness of guilt. You may not consider that
8 evidence as proof that the defendant had a tendency to
9 commit any of the crimes for which he has been indicted

10 or that he acted in conformity with that tendency.
11 Now, as I told you during the course of the
12 case, the defense is not arguing by the testimony you
13 have heard about the defendant leaving for Baltimore,
14 that the defendant is not responsible for the shooting
15 of Mr. Chininin because he could not have been
16 physically present at the time the crime was committed.
17 Now, there has been some testimony in the
18 case from which you may infer that the defendant fled
19 shortly after the alleged commission of the crime.
20 Nhile the defendant admits he was on the "on the run"
21 from the authorities sometime after late November of
22 2002, he suggests that his actions in leaving shortly
23 after the shooting were for travel to work in
24 Baltimore.

25 If you find the defendant's explanation
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1 credible, you should not draw any inference of the
2 defendant's consciousness of guilt from the defendant's
3 departure shortly after the shooting.
4 If, after a cc.nsl'Ueration of the all of the
5 evidence, you find that the defendant, fearing that an
6 accusation or arrest could be maaa against him on the
7 charges involved in the indictment, took refuge in
8 flight for the purposes of evading the accusation or
9 arrest, then you may consider such flight in connection

10 with all the other evidence in the case as an
11 indication or proof oi. a consciousness of guilt. It is
12 for you, as judges of the facts, to decide whether or
13 not evidence of flight shows a consciousness of guilt,
14 and the weight to be given to such evidence in light of

15 all the other evidence in the case.
16 Now, the defendant is charged in Count 1 with
17 felony murder. And the State contends that on November
18 4th, of 2002, while the defendant was engaged in the
19 commission of, or attempt to commit, or flight after
20 committing or attempting to commit the crime of
21 robbery, as charged in Count 3 of the indictment, that
22 he shot and killed Felix Chininin.
23 The section of the statute applicable to this
24 case reads in pertinent part as follows. Criminal

25 homicide constitutes murder when it is coessitted when
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1 the actor Is engaged in the coanission of» or attempt
2 to conmit, or flight after coaaiitting or attempting to
3 commit robbery, and in the course of such crime, or the
4 immediate flight therefrom, causes the death of a
5 person other than one of the participants. Generally

6 it does not matter that the act which caused death was
7 committed recklessly, or unintentionally, or
8 accidentally. The perpetrator is as guilty of felony
9 murder as it would be if he had purposely or knowingly

10 committed the act which caused death.
11 In order for you to find the defendant guilty
12 of felony murder, the State is required to prove t'cyond
13 a reasonable doubt from all of the evidence in the case
14 all of the essential elements of the crime charged.
15 Accordingly, you can find the defendant
16 guilty of felony murder before — rather, in order to
17 find the defendant guilty of the felony murder, the
18 State must prove beyond a reasonable doubt: One, that
19 on or about November 4th of 2002, the defendant was
20 engaged in the commission of, or attempt to commit, or

21 flight after committing or attempting to commit the
22 crime of robbery, as charged in Count 3 of the
23 indictment. Two, that the death ut F«lix Chininln was
24 caused by the defendant. And three, that the death of
25 Felix Chininin was caused at some time within the
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1 course of the commission of th<;it crime, including itw
2 aftermath of flight and concealment efforts.
3 The first element requires the State to prove
4 beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant was
5 engaged in the comm.ission ox, cr attempt to commit, or
6 flight after committing or attempting to commit the
7 crime of robbery. I will define th« elements of
0 robbery which defendant is accused of having engaged in 
9 when I do Count 3.

10 The second and third elements require the
11 State to establish that the victim's death was caused
12 by the defendant, and was caused during the commission
13 of or, attempt to commit, or flight after committing or
14 attempting to commit the robbery. In order to meet its
15 burden of proof as to the second and third elements,
16 the State roust prove beyond a reasonable doubt the
17 following.

18 That but for defendant's conduct '>n the
19 commission of, or attempt to commit, or flight after
20 committing or attempting to coaoslt robbery, the victim
21 would not have died. In other words, that the victim's
22 death would not have occurred without the coMmission of
23 the robbery. Two, that the victim's death was a
24 probable consequence of the commission, or attempt to

2*y commit, or flight after commiltting or attempting to
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1 conmlt robbery.
2 In order for the death to be a probable
3 consequence of the robbery, the death »ust not have
4 been too remote or too accidental in its occurrence or
5 too dependent on another's volitional acta to have a
6 just bearing on the defendant's liability or the
7 gravity of his offense.
8 In other words, you must decide if the State
9 has proven beyond a reasonable doubt, that under all

10 the circumstances, the death did not occur in such an
11 unexpected or unusual manner, that it would be unjust
12 to find the defendant responsible for the death.
13 In conclusion, if you find, after
14 consideration of all the evidence, that the State has
15 proved to your satisfaction beyond a reasonable doubt
16 each of the these elements as I have just explained
17 them: One, that the defendant was engaged in the
18 commission, or attempt to commit, or flight after
19 committing or attempting to commit the crime of robbery
20 as charged in Count 3 of the indictment; two, that the
21 defendant — that the death, rather, of Felix Chinir.in
22 was caused by defendant; three, that the death of that
23 persuu >»oo caused at some time within the course of the
24 commission of that crime, including its aftermath of
25 flight and concealment efforts; then you must find the
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1 defendant guilty.
2 On Che other hand, if you find that the State
3 has filled to prove to your s,atisfaction beyond a
4 reasonable doubt any one cr 3iore of those elements,
5 then you must find the defendcr.t not guilty of felony
6 murder.

7 If the State has failed to prove beyond a
8 reasonable doubt that the defendant caused the death of
9 the victim, then the defendant muse be found not guilty

10 of all charges of homicic^e offenses.
11 In the second count the defendant is charged
12 with the murder of Felix Chininin. A person is gvilr.y
13 of murder if he: One, caused the Victim's death or
14 serious bodily injury that then resulted in the
15 victim's death; and two, that the defendant did so
16 purposely or knowingly.
17 By the way, when I read definitions, which 1

18 do throughout the course of the case, for example,
19 during the course of this case purposely or knowingly,
20 remember the definitions because they come up more than
21 once. And I don't generally repeat them, the
22 definitions, each time.
23 In order for you the find the defendant
24 guilty of murder, the Stats is required to prove each 
2'a of the following elMents beyond a reasonable doubt:
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1 One, that the defendant caused Felix Chininin's death
2 or serious bodily injury that resulted in Felix
3 Chininin's death; and two, that the defendant did so
4 purposely or knowingly.
5 One elenent the State must prove beyond a
6 reasonable doubt is that the defendant acted purposely
7 or knowingly.
6 A person acts purposely when it is the
9 person's conscious object to cause death or serious

10 bodily injury resulting in death.
11 A person acts knowingly when the person is
12 aware that it is practically certain that his conduct
13 will cause death or serious bodily injury resulting in
14 death.

15 The nature of the purpose or knowledge with
16 which the defendant acted towards Felix Chininin is a
17 question of fact for you the jury t decide. Purpose

18 and knowledge are conditions of mind, which cannot be
19 seen, and can only be determined by inferences from
20 conduct, words or acts.
21 It is not necessary for the State to produce
22 a witness or witnesses who could testify that the
23 defendant stated, for example, that his purpose uas to
24 cause death or serious bodily injury resulting in

25 death, or that he knew that his conduct would cause
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1 death or serious bodily injury resulting in death. It

2 is within your power to find that >proof of purpose or
3 knowledge has been furnished beyond a reasonable doubt
4 by inferences which may arise from the nature of the
5 acts and the surrounding cirt.^ot«nces. Such things as
6 the place where the acts occurred, the t«eapon used, the
7 location, number and nature of wounds inflicted, and

8 all that was done or said by the defendant proceeding,
9 connected with, and immediately succeeding the events

10 leading to the death of ?elix Chininin are among the
11 circumstances to be considered.
12 The other element that the State must prove
13 beyond a reasonable doubt is that the defendant caused
14 Felix Chininin's death or serious bodily injury
15 resulting in death. As I previously advised you, in

16 order to convict the defendant of murder, the State
17 must prove beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant
18 either purposely or knowingly caused the victim's death
19 or serious bodily Injury resulting in death. In that
20 regard, serious bodily injury means bodily injury which
21 creates a substantial risk of death. A substantial
22 risk of death exists where it is highly probable that
23 the injury will result in death.
24 In order for you to find the defendant guilty
25 of purposeful serious bodily injury murder, the State
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must prove beyond a reasonable doubt that It was the 
defendant's conscious object to cause serious bodily 
injury that then resulted in the victim's death; that 
Che defendant knew that the Injury created a 
substantial risk of dental; and that it was highly 
probable that death would result. In order for you to 
find the defendant guilty of knowing serious bodily 
injury murder, the State must prove beyond a reasonable 
doubt that the defendant was aware that it was 
practically certain that his conduct would cause 
serious bodily injury that then resulted in the 
victim's death; that the defendant knew that the injury 
created a substantial risk of death; and that was 
highly probable that death would result.

Whether the killing is committed purposely or 
knowing, causing death or serious bodily injury 
resulting in death must be within the design or 
contemplation of the defendant.

In order for you to find the defendant guilty 
of murder, the State must first establish beyond a 
reasonable doubt that the defendant caused Felix 
Chininin's death or serious bodily injury resulting in 
death, either purposely or knowingly, as I have defined 
those terms for you. The State, however, is not 
required to prove a motive, if the state has proved

Court's Charge 8!

the essential elements of the offense beyond a 
reasonable doubt, the defendant must be found guilty of 
that offense, regardless of ^he defendant's motive or 
lack of a motive. If the S'tate, however, has proved 
the motive, you may considet that insofar as it gives 
meaning to other circumstances. On the other hand, you 
may consider the absence of motive in weighing whether 
or not the defendant is guilty of the crime charged.

A homicide or a killing with a deadly weapon, 
such as a handgun, in itself would permit you to draw 
an Inference that the defendant's purpose was to take 
life or cause serious bodily injury resulting in death.

A deadly weapon is any firearm or other 
weapon, devise, instrument, material, or substance, 
which in the manner it is used or is intended to be 
used, is known to be capable of producing death or 
serious bodily injury. In your deliberations you may 
consider the weapon used and the manner ard 
circumstances of the killing. And if you are satisfied 
beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant shot and 
killed Felix Chininin with a gun, you may draw an 
inference from the weapon used that it is the gun, and 
from the manner and circumstances of the killing as to 
the defendant's purpose or knowledge.

All jurors do not have to agree unanlswusly
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concerning which form of murder is present, so long as 
all believe that it was one form of murder or the 
other. However, for a defendant to be guilty of 
murder, all jurors must agree that the defendant either 
knowingly or purposely caused the death or serious 
bodily Injury resulting in the death of Felix Chininin.

If after a consideration of all the evidence 
you are convinced beyond a reasonable doubt that the 
defendant either purposely or knowingly caused Felix 
Chininin's death, or serious bodily Injury resulting in 
death, then your verdict must be guilty.

If, however, after a consideration of all of 
the evidence you find the State has failed to prove any 
element of offense beyond a reasonable doubt, your 
verdict must be not guilty.

In Count 3, the defendant is charged with the 
crime of robbery. The pertinent part of the statute on 
which this indictment is based reads as follows: A

person is guilty of robbery if in the course of 
committing a theft he knowingly inflicts bodily injury 
or uses force upon another.

In order for you to find the defendant guilty 
of robbery, the State is required to prove each of the 
following elements beyond a reasonable doubt. One, 
that the defendant was in the course of committing a
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theft; and two, that while in the course of committing 
that theft, the defendant knowingly inflicted bodily 
injury or used force upon another.

As I have said, the State must prove beyond a 
reasonable doubt that the o«fcr.dant was in the course 
of committing a theft. In this connection, you are 
advised that an act is considered :o be in the course 
of committing a theft if it occurs in an attempt to 
commit the theft, during the commission of the theft, 
itself, or in immediate flight after the attempt or 
commission.

Theft is defined as the unlawful taking or 
of unlawful control over property of another 
purpose to deprive him thereof.
I used the phrase "with purpose." You may 

hear me say or use that phrase or "purposely" again. A 
person acts purposely with respect to the nature of his 
conduct or a result thereof if it is his conscious 
object to engage in conduct of that nature or to cause 
such a result. A person acts purposely with respect to 
attendant circumstances if he is aware of the existence 
cf such circumstances, or he believes or hopes that 
they exist.

With purpose, design, with design, or 
equivalent terms have the same meaning. Purpose Is a

exercise 
with the
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state of mind that can not be seen, and can only be 
determined by Inferences from conduct, words or acts. 
Therefore, It is not necessary that the State produce 
witnesses to testify that a defendant said that he 
purposely did something. His purpose may be gathered 
from his acts and conduct, from all that he said and 
did at the particular time and place, and from all the 
surrounding circumstances reflected In the testimony.

In addition to proving beyond a reasonable 
doubt that the defendant was In the course of 
committing a theft, the State must also prove beyond a 
reasonable doubt that while In the course of comultclng 
the theft, the defendant knowingly Inflicted bodily 
Injury or used force upon another.

A person acts knowingly with respect to the 
nature of his conduct or the attendant circumstances.
If he Is aware that his conduct Is of that nature or 
that such circumstances exist, or If he Is aware of a 
high probability of their existence.

A i>erson acts knowingly with respect to the 
result of his conduct If he Is aware that It Is 
practically concern that his conduct will cause such a 
result.

Knowledge Is a condition of mind that can not 
be seen and can be determined only by Inferences from
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conduct, words or acts.

A state of mind Is rare/y susceptible of 
direct proof, but must ordinarily be Inferred from the 
facts. Therefore, It is not necessary for the State to 
produce witnesses to testily thet an accused said that 
he had a certain state of mind when be engaged In a 
particular act. It is within your power to find that 
such proof has been finished beyond a reasonable doubt 
by Inferences which may arise from the nature of the 
defendant's acts and conduct, from all that he said and 
did at the particular clme and place and from all 
surrounding circumstances.

The phrase "bodily Injury" meane physical 
pain, illness or any Impairment of physical condition. 
Force means an amount of physical power or strength 
used against the victim, and not simply against the 
victim's property.

The force need not entail pain cr bodily 
harm, and not leave any mark. Nevertheless, the force 
must be greater than that necessary merely to snatch 
the object from the victim's grasp, or the victim's 
person, and the force must be directed against the 
victim, not merely at the victim's property.

Now, a section of our statute provides that 
robbery Is a crime of second degree, except that It is

89



Court'8 Charge 90

1 a crlae of first degree if the robber is armed with or
2 uses or threatens the inmediate use of a deadly weapon.
3 In this case, it is alleged that the
4 defendant was aimed with a deadly weapon, used or
5 threatened the use of a deadly women weapon while in
6 the course of committing the robbery. In order for you
7 to determine the answer to this question, you must
8 understand the meaning of term deadly weapon. A

9 "deadly weapon" is any firearm or other weapon, devise,
10 instrument, material, or substance, which in the manner
11 it is used or intended to be used, is known to be
12 capable of producing death or serious bodily injury, or
13 tdiich in the manner it is fashioned, would lead the
14 victim reasonably to believe it to be capable of
15 producing death or serious bodily injury.
16 In this case, the State alleges the defendant
17 was armed with a handgun. You must determine if this
18 object qualifies as a deadly weapon, and if the State
19 has proven beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant
20 used it in the course of committing the robbery. I

21 have already defined serious bodily injury for you.
22 To summarize, if you find that the State has
23 not proven beyond a reasonable doubt any element of the
24 crime of robbery as I have defined that crime to you,
25 then you must find the defendant not guilty.

Court's Charge 91

1 If you find that the state has proven beyond
2 a reasonable doubt that the defendant intended to
3 commi *. the crime of robbt ry, as I have defined that
4 crime to you, but if you the State has not pi-oven
5 beyond a zeasonable doubt tn.t the defendant was armed
6 with or used or threatened the iamodiate use of a
7 deadly weapon at the time of the commission of the
8 robbery, then i»ou must find the defendant guilty of
9 robbery in the second degree.

10 If you find that the State has proven beyond
11 a reasonable doubt that the defendant committed the
12 crime of robbery and was armed with a deadly weapon, or
13 used or threatened the immediate use of « deadly weapon
14 at the time of the commission of the robbery, then you
15 must find him guilty of robbery in the first degree.
16 Actually, rather than using first or second
17 degree in my verdict sheet to you, I believe, and I

18 will check to make sure, I just said: Do ^x>u find
19 robbery? Guilty or not guilty. And then ask a
20 question: Mas the defendant armed with, used or
21 threatened to use a deadly weapon? Yea or no.
22 In Count 4, the defendant is charged with
23 unlawful possession of a handgun. The statute upon
24 which this count is based reads as follows. Any person
25 who knowingly has in his possession any handgxm without
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first having obtained a permit to carry the 
guilty of a crime.

to convict the defendant, the State 
the following elements beyond a 
One, that S*64 in evidence is a 

handgun; two, that the defendant knowingly possessed 
the handgun; and three, that the defendant did not havo 
a permit to possess such a weapon.

The first element the State must prove beyond 
a reasonable doubt is that S-64 was a handgun. Under 
our law a handgun is any pistol, revolver, or other 
firearm originally designed or manufactured to fire or 
eject any solid projectile, ball, slug, pellet, missile 
or bullet, or any gas, vapor or other noxious thing by 
means of a cartridge or shell, or by action of an 
explosive or the igniting of flammable or explosive 
substance by the use of a single hand.

The second element the State must prove 
beyond a reasonable doubt is that the defendant 
knowingly possessed the handgun. I have already 
defined knowingly for you and that is a condition of 
mind.

The word "possess" as used in criminal 
statutes signifies a knowing, intentional control of a 
designated thing, accompanied by a knowledge of its
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1 character. Thus, the defendant must know or be awarw
2 that he possessed the handgun, and defendant must know
3 what it is that he possesses or controls as a handgxin.
4 The possession cannot merely K-% a passing control, that
5 is fleeting or uncertain in itc nature. In other
6 words, to "possess" within the meaning of law, the
7 defendant must knowingly procure or receive the handgun
8 possessed, or be aware of his control thereof for a
9 sufficient period much time to have been able to

10 relinquish control, if he chose to do sc. A person may
11 possess a handgun, even though it was not physically on
12 his person at the time of the arrest, if the person had
13 in fact at some time prior to his arrest, had control
14 and dominion over it. When we speak of possession, we
15 mean a conscious, knowing possession.
16 The third element that the State must prove
17 beyond a reasonable doubt is that the defendant did not
18 have a permit to possess such a handgun. If you find
19 that the defendant knowingly possessed the handgun, and
20 that there is no evidence that the defendant had a
21 valid permit to carry such a handgun, then you may
22 infer, if you think it is appropriate to do so based
23 upon the facts presented, that the defenda'^t had uo
24 such permit. Note, however, that as with ail other
25 elements, the State bears the burden of showing beyond



■ jiyi^i' -: gyy^*’ST'w?n .mix. »-^-.^ '»;

1
1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8 
9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20 
21 
22

23

24

25

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8 
9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20 
21 
22

23

24

25

Court's Charge 94

a reasonable doubt the lack of a valid permit and that 
you may draw the inference only if you fee? it is 
appropriate to do so under all the circ'jonstances and 
facts.

If you find the State has failed to prove any 
of the elements of the crime beyond a reasonable doubt> 
your verdict must be not guilty. On the other hand, if 
you are satisfied that the State has proven all of the 
elements of the crime beyond a reasonable doubt, your 
verdict must be guilty.

The fifth count of the indictment charged the 
defendant with tne crime of possession of a firearm 
with a purpose to use it unlawfully against the person 
or property of another. The statute on which this 
count of the indictment is based reads in pertinent 
part: Any person who has in his possession any firearm 
with a purpose to use it unlawfully against the 
personal or property of another is guilty of a crime.

In order for you to find the defendant guilty 
of this charge, the State has the burden of proving 
beyond a reasonable each of the following four elements 
of the crime: One, that exhibit S>64 is a firearm.
Two, the defendant possessed the firearm. Three, the 
defendant possessed the firearm with a purpose to use 
it against the person or property of another. Four,

Court's Charge 9'

the defendant's purpose was to use the firearm 
unlawfully.

The first elemtmt that the state must prove 
beyond a reasonable doubt is that exhibit S-64 is a 
firearm. And if you find that 2-64 is a handg\in or a 
deadly weapon under the prior definitions, then it is 
also a firearm.

The second element the State must prove 
beyond a reasonable doubt is that the defendant 
possessed the firearm, and I have already defined 
possession for you.

The third element the State must prove beyond 
a reasonable doubt is that the defendant's purpose in 
possessing the fireaim was to use it against the parson 
or property of another. I have already defined purpose 
for you, and that is a condition of tho mind. The 
defendant's purp>08e or conscious objective to use the 
firearm against another person or the prop«>rty of 
another may be found to exist at any time he is in a 
possession of the object, and need not have been the 
defendant's original intent in possessing the object.

The fourth element the State must prove 
beyond a reasonable doubt is that the def-.mdant had a 
purpose to use the firearm in a manner that was 
prohibited by law. Again, I have already defined
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1 purpose for you. This elcnents requires that you find
2 that the State has proven beyond a reasonable doubt
3 that the defendant possessed a firearm with the
4 conscious objective, desiqn, or specific Intent to use
5 it against the person or property of another in an
6 unlawful manner as charged in the indictment, and not
7 for some other purpose.
8 In this case, the State charges or contends,
9 rather, that the defendant's unlawful purpose in

10 possessing the firearm was to shoot Felix Chininin
11 and/or to rob Felix Chininin.
12 You must not rely upon your o’<m notions of
13 the unlawfulness of some other undescribed purposes of
14 the defendant; rather, you must consider whether the
15 State hos proven the specific unlawful purpose charge.

16 The unlawful purposes alleged by the State may be
17 inferred from all that was said or done, and from all
18 of the surrounding circumstances of this case.
19 However, the State need not prove that the defendant
20 accomplished his unlawful purpose of using the firearm.
21 If you are satisfied beyond a reasonable
22 doubt that the State has proven each of the elements of
23 this offense as I have defined them, then you must find
24 the defendant guilty.
25 However, if you find that the State has
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1 failed to prove beyond a reaso'^able doubt any of the
2 elements of this offense as I have defined them, then
3 you must find the defendant not guilty.
4 The indictment chasges the defendant in Count
5 6 with tampering with a witneos. The pertinent part of
6 the statute upon which this count is based reads as
7 follows. A person commits a an offanse if, believing
8 that an official proceeding or investigation is p>ending
9 or about to be instituted, he knowingly attempts to

10 induce or otherwise cause a witness or informant to:
11 Withhold any testimony information, document or thing.
12 This offense involves knowing attempts to induce a
13 witness or informant to testify falsely or in other
14 ways to subvert the administration of justice.
15 Before the defendant can be found guilty of
16 violating this statute, the State must prove beyond a
17 reasonable doubt each and every one of the following
18 elements. One, that the defendant believed that an
19 official proceeding or investigation was pending or
20 about to be instituted. Two, that the defendant
21 knowingly attempted to induce or otherwise cause a
22 witness or informant to wittihold any testimony,
23 information, document or thing.
24 The first element provides that the defendant
25 must have believed that an official proceeding or
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investigation was pending or about to be instituted. 
This requires that the defendant consider to be true 
the fact that an official proceeding or investigation 
was pending. In other words, that the defendant in his 
mind believed that an official proceeding or 
investigation was pending.

The State must prove that the defendant held 
his belief but need not prove that a proceeding or 
investigation was in fact pending or about to be 
instituted. The statute focures on what the defendant 
believed, and not on what was necessarily true, and not 
on external facts that may be irrelevant to the 
defendant's aim to subvert the administration of 
justice.

The first element also speaks of official 
proceedings or investigations. The word 
"investigation" is not strictly limited to police 
investigation, but covers any kind of official 
proceeding oi investigation.

Official proceedings is define as a procedure 
heard or which may be heard before any legislature, 
judicial, administrative or other governmental agency 
or official authorized to take evidence under oa'.h. 
Including any referee, hearing examiner, commissioner, 
notary or other person taking testimony or deposition
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in connection with any such proceeding.
The second element of the offence is that the 

defendant knowingly attem^oted to induce o.r otherwise 
cause a witness or informant 'co withhold any testimony, 
information, document or thing. The second element 
also requires an attempt. Thus the actor need not 
actually induce a witness or infornumt to do anything. 
The law provides that a person is g'jilty of an attempt 
to commit a crime if the person does anything with the 
purpose of causing result without further conduct on 
his part.

In essence, the defendant's purpose must be 
to influence the behavior of the witness or informant. 
Having that purpose, the defendant must knowingly 
engage in the attempt to induce or otherwise cause the 
witness or informant to withhold any testimony, 
information, document or thing.

The word "threat" Includes both o/ert threats 
and more subtle forms of intimidation.

I'm sorry, let me back up. The third element 
requires the actor to employ force, deception or 
threat. And the %#ord "threat" includes both overt 
threats and more subtle forms of intimidation; to 
withhold any testimony, information, document or thing.

In conclusion, in order to sustain is
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1 conviction, the State must prove beyond a reasonable
2 doubt each and every element of this offense. If the
3 State has failed to prove one or more of the elements
4 beyond a reasonable doubt, your verdict should be not
5 guilty. If, however, the State has proven each of
6 these elements beyond a reasonable doubt, your verdict
7 should be guilty.
8 The seventh count of indictment charges the
9 defendant with committing terroristic threats. The

10 pertinent part of our statute is as follows. A person
11 is guilty of a crime if he threatens to commit any
12 crime of violence with the purpose to terrorize another
13 or in reckless disregard of the risk of causing such
14 terror.

15 The prosecution must prove the following
16 elements beyond a reasonable doubt: That the threat to
17 cosuBlt a crime of violence was with a purpose to
18 terrorize another or in reckless disregard of the risk
19 of causing such terror. I have already defined
20 purposely for you.
21 The gist of the offense is that the words or
22 actions used by the defendant are of such a nature to
23 convey the menace or fear of a crime of violence to the
24 ordinary hearer or individual.
25 The crime of violence is that the words or
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1 actions used by the defendant are of such a nature to
2 convey the menace or fear of a crime of violence to the

3 ordinary hearer. I read the sentence twice because I
4 printed it out twice by acciaent.
5 The crime of violeno« that is alleged by the
6 prosecution that the defendant thr\>atsned is the
7 following language alleged to have been said by the
8 defendant to Alix Tlxi, that he wa^’i going to pay me a
9 visit before he went away.

10 It is not necessary that the victim was
11 ter-orized. It is not a violation of this statute if
12 the threat expresses only a fleeting anger, or that the
13 threat was merely with the intent to alam.
14 If the State has failed to prove beyond a
15 reasonable doubt any one of the elements that have been
16 described to you, you must find the defendant not
17 guilty. If the Stote has proven all the elesMnts
18 beyond a reasonable doubt, then you must f .nd the
19 defendant guilty.
20 Now, the subject of the charges in Counts 6
21 and 7 of the indictment are the alleged words of
22 defendant towards Alex Tixi on December 14th, of 2002,
23 and not the alleged words of defendant towards Carlos
24 Marquinez on June 7th, of 2004.
25 In Count 8 of the Indictment, the defendant
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is charged with the crine of receiving stolen property. 
And this charge is based on a statute which reads in 
pertinent part; A person is guilty of theft if he 
knowingly receives movable property of another, knowing 
it has been stolen, or believing that it has probably 
been stolen.

Under this statute, the State must prove 
three elements to establish that a defendant is guilty 
of receiving stolen property. These elements are:
One, that the defendant received movable property of 
another. Two, that the defendant acted knowingly when 
he received the movable property of another. And 
three, that the defendant either knew that the property 
had been stolen or believed that it had been stolen at 
the time he received the property.

The first element the State must prove beyond 
a reasonable doubt is that the defendant received 
movable property of another. The term "receive” means 
to acquire possession, control, or title of the 
property. The term "movable property" means property, 
the location of which can be changed. The term 
"property" means anything of value. Property of 
another means property in which the defendant dees not 
have a lawful interest. The State need not, however, 
prove the identity of the owner, the identity of
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original thief, or the identify of the person from whom 
the defendant received the property.

The second element the State must prove 
beyond a reasonable doubt la that the defendant acted 
knowingly when he received tha movable property of 
another. I have already defined knowingly.

The third element the State must prove beyono 
a reasonable doubt is that the defendant either knew 
that the property had been stolen, or believed th^t it 
had probably been stolen at the time the defendant 
received the property.

Stolen property means property that has been 
the subject of an unlawful taking and unlawful taking 
occurs when a person takes or exercises unlawful 
control over the property of another with a purpose, 
that is, the conscious object of depriving the other of 
it permanently, or for extended a period as to 
appreciate a substantial portion of its economic value.

I have already defined the term "knowing" to
you.

The State is not required to prove that the 
property, in fact, had been stolen. On the other hand, 
mere proof that the property was stolen is not 
sufficient to establish tliis element. Aether, %«hat the 
State must prove is that the defendant either knew that
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1 the property was stolen, or believed that it had
2 probably been stolen. A belief that property has
3 probably been stolen is a belief that it is siore likely
4 tnan not that the property has been stolen.
5 Again, knowledge and belief are states of
6 mind, which cannot be seen, and you have heard me
7 repeat that state of mind definition several times.
8 To reiterate, the three elements which the
9 State must prove are: One, that the defendant received

10 movable property of another; two, that in so doing, the
11 defendant acted knowing; and three, that the defendant
12 either knew that the property had been stolen, or
13 believed that it had probably been stolen when he
14 received it.
15 If you conclude that the State has proved all
16 of these elements of the offense beyond a reasonable
17 doubt, you must find the defendant guilty. On the
18 other hand, if you find the State has failed to prove
19 any of the elements beyond a reasonable doubt, you must
20 find the defendant not guilty.
21 That concludes my instructions on the
22 principles of law regarding the offenses charged in the
23 indictment.

24 There is nothing different in the way that
25 the jury is to consider the proof in a criminal case
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from that which all reasonable persons treat any 
questions, depending upon evidence presented to them. 
You axe expected to use your <'wn good coiKoon sense, 
consider the evidence only for the purposes for which 
it has been admitted, and giv« it a fair and reasonable 
construction in the light of your knowledge of how 
people behave. It is the quality o! evidence, not 
simply the number of witnesses that controls.

Anything that has not been marked into 
evidence cannot be given to you in the :iuryrocm, even 
though it may have been marked for identification.
Only those items marked for evidence go into the jury 
rooi«.

Very shortly you will go into the juryroom to 
start your deliberations. I remind you that during 
deliberations, and in fact any time that you're in the 
jury deliberation room, you must keep any cell phone, 
pager, or other communication devise you pcssess turned 
off. You are to apply the law as X have instructed you 
to the facts as you find them to be for the purposes of 
arriving at a fair and correct verdict. The verdict 
must represent the considered judgment of each juror 
and must be unanimous as to each charge.

This means that although you mast agree 
whether the defendant is guilty or not guilty on each
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1 charge, it is your duty as jurors to consult with one
2 another and to deliberate with a view to reaching an
3 agreement, if you can do so without violence to
4 individual judgment. Each of you must decide the case
5 for yourself, but do so only after an impartial
6 consideration of the evidence with your fellow jurors.
7 In the course of your deliberations, do not
8 hesitate to re-examine your own views and change your
9 opinion, if convinced it is erroneous, but do not

10 surrender your honest conviction as to the weight or
11 effect of evidence solely because of the opinion of
12 your fellow jurors, or for the mere purpose of
13 returning a verdict. You are not partisans, you are
14 judges of the facts.
15 In this case you may return on each charge a
16 verdict of either not guilty or guilty. This is a
17 criminal case, and therefore your verdicts, whatever
18 they may be, must be unanimous. All 12 of you who are
19 ultimately chosen as the deliberating jury must agree
20 as to the verdict.
21 To assist you in reporting a verdict, I have
22 prepared a verdict sheet for you. You will have this
23 with you in the juryroom. The verdict form, in itself,
24 is not evidence. The order in which the charges are
25 listed in the verdict sheet is merely the order that
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1 they are listed in the indictment. But that order is
2 not intended to direct you as to whilch ordor you should
3 consider the charges, you may j'onsider thecu in a
4 different order, if you choose to do so.
5 And basically we have i.i.o count number, what
6 the charge is, and then a place to mirk guilty or not
7 guilty. Count 1, felony murder, not guilty or guilty.
8 Count 2, purposeful and knowing murder, not guilty or
9 guilty. Robbery, not guilty, or guilty. If guilty,

10 consider was the defendant armed with, used or
11 threatened to use a deadly weapon, then you (heck chat
12 either yes or no. Count 4, unlawful possession of a
13 weapon, not guilty or guilty. Count 5, possession of a
14 weapon for an unlawful purposes, not guilty or guilty.
15 Count 4, tampering with a witness or informant, not
16 guilty or guilty. Count 7, terroristic threats, not
17 guilty or guilty. Count 8, receiving stolen property,
18 not guilty or guilty.
19 If during your deliberations you have a
20 question or you feel you need further instruction from
21 me, write your (question on a sheet of paper, get the
22 Sheriff's officer attention by turning on the red light
23 over the door. He'll show you the switch t.nat turns it
24 on. He will come to the door, you will give him the

25 question, he will bring it to me, and I will try and
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answer it. But if that happens, please be patient. Do 
not send out — if you do send out a question, do not 
disclose where you stand on your delil^rations, whether 
you have reached a verdict on some counts and not the 
other, or where you stand on any particular count, if 
are you 10 to 2 or 8 to 4. Don't tell us anything.

If you have reached a unanimous verdict, 
again, turn on the red light. The sheriff's officer 
will come to the door, and just tell him you have 
reached a verdict, not anything more, and then we will 
bring you into the courtroom, as soon as %#• have 
collected all the people involved, and take your 
verdict in open court.

Gentlemen, I have come to the end of my 
charge. Do you need a sidebar for any objections to 
the charge?

No objection, your Honor.
Just one thing. Judge.

(The following takes place at sidebar)
MR. NcTIGUE: Judge, on the charge of

receiving stolen property, I don't believe, I will 
stand to be corrected if I'm wrong, that you mentioned

MR. SAMPSON: 
MR. McTIGUE:

Officer Par's gun.
THE COURT: I didn't.

I will mention it. Okay?

That's the only thing.

Court's Charge ICS

MR. McTIGUE: Yes.

(The following takes place in open court)
THE COURT: With regard to Count 8, receiving

stolen property, I didn't Motion what it is alleged 
that the defendant had stolen. That is Officer Par's 
gun, S-64. That's what alleged to have been received. 
That's the property, the stolen property alleged to 
have been received.

All right. Ne will now reduce the jury to 12 
by selecting two alternates at random.

Mr. Clerk, if you will do that.
THE CLERK: Yes. First alternate juror is

juror number one, Millie Sims.
THE COURT: Mr. Sims, you are an alternate.
THE CLERK: The next alternate is number 9,

Helen Danielson.
THE COURT: Ms. Danielson, you are an

alternate juror. That means that since juror number 1 
is an alternate, juror number 2, Ns. Copeland, you are 
the foreperson of the jury. That's simply because you 
are the next one left after Mr. Sims has been made an 
alternate, and your responsibility is to lead the 
deliberations. That simply means that make sure 
everybody gets a chance to say whatever it is they want 
to. And then at the appropriate time, when you vote.

-C'..'
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1 you're the one that will tally the vote.
2 Finally, when you have reached a verdict, it
3 will be your responsibility when you coae out to tell
4 us what the verdict is. When you reach a verdict and
5 we ask you to coeie out, the court clerk will ask you to

6 stand, you will have the verdict sheet in your hand,
7 you will be the one that will mark the verdict sheet
8 not guilty or guilty and so forth, and he will ask you:
9 Have you reached a verdict? And hopefully you will say

10 yes. And then he will ask you: Is that verdict
11 unanimous? Hopefully you will say yes. And then he
12 will go through each count. Count one, felony murder,
13 how do you find? And then you will say not guilty or
14 guilty. And we will go dovm through all the questions
15 of Coutits 1 through 8. Otherwise, your vote doesn't
16 count any more than anybody else's.
17 Now, as soon as the officers have been sworn,
18 you will be returned to the juryroom. But do not begin
19 your deliberations until all the evidence has been
20 brought in by the officers. And I'm going to actually
21 send you to lunch. The first thing you should do is go
22 into the juryroom and tell me whether or not you want
23 to take a full hour of lunch or some lesser time period
24 than a full hour for lunch, or whether you want to go
25 get your lunch and bring it back. Whatever is fine.

Court's Charge 111

1 But make that decision immediately, and then let me
2 know what it is by sending me out a note right away,
3 and t.hen we'll adjourn for wi'ttever period of time that
4 you wish to adjourn.
5 Let's swear in the oiricers.
6 (Officers s%#om)
7 THE COURT: Counsel will review the evidence
8 and place on the record that all the evidence is in a
9 order.

10 You may go into the juryroom at this time to
11 mak? that decision. The alternates can go in too for
12 the purposes of making that decision. Of course you
13 are not beginning your deliberations All you are
14 deliberating about now is are you going to lunch, for

15 how long. As soon as you know, that let me know and I
16 will bring you back out and I will give an instruction
17 to the alternates as well. As a matter of fact, I will
18 let you make that decision first.
19 (The jury is excused)
20 MR. McTIGUE: Judge, with regard to the
21 evidence, we do have a firearm, but there are no
22 bullets, so I'm not anticipating any objection from the
23 court officer in that regard. He will clsar it of
24 course before it goes in.
^5 The second item I have is very practical. As
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1 the Court may have expressed Itself, sobm of the
2 exhibits involve clothing, which in bloody. And quite
3 frankly. Judge, and as noticeable, a very unpleasant
4 odor. Ne do have photographs available. The evidence
5 can be available to the jurors, should they wish it.

6 If they want to look at that evidence, we'll provide
7 gloves and things for them to use. And how you wish to
8 convey that to them, I will leave to you.
9 THE COURT-. Any objection, Mr. Sampson?

10 MR. SAMPSON: No, Your Honor.
11 THE COURT: I will convey it just as you have
12 said it when we bring them out after they have made
13 their decision as to how long they want to go for
14 lunch.

15 MR. McTIGUE: All right. Judge.
16 (Jurors brought out)
17 THE COURT: All right, ladies and gentlemen,
18 you are going to be excused for lunch, at your request,
19 for 45 minutes. Even if all of you sit at the same
20 table in the cafeteria, do not discuss the case. You

21 are only to discuss the case when 12 of you are
22 together in the juryroom with the evidence. Okay?

23 And the alternates, you are not excuse as
24 jurors. You will be kept in a separate location in
25 case it becomes necessary to substitute one or both of

Court's Chargie 1J3

1 you for another juror or jurors. You should not
2 therefore discuss this case with .anyone or between the
3 two of you. If it becoaes necessary to substitute an
4 alternate, I will give you a.ad the remaining
5 deliberating jurors further instructions at that time.
€ If there is a question, or there 1» a verdict, you will
7 be brought into the courtroom to hear it as well, so
8 you can all go to lunch together, if you like or not,
9 however you do it, it doesn't really matter. But.

10 again, remember, do not discuss the case, and «fe'll see
11 you back at approximately 1:30. Enjoy your lunch.
12 Ladies and gentlemen, one more thing. You're

13 going to have the evidence when you all come back, and
14 you are not going to begin deliberations until tho 12
15 deliberating jurors are in the juryroom. We will have
16 the evidence in the juryroom for you already, but what
17 won’t be in the juryroom that is in evidence are some
18 clothes that have blood stain.s on then. Okay? They

19 obviously have blood stains on them and they have some
20 smell to them as well. And if you want to see them,
21 tnen you ask by turning on the red light and ask the
22 sheriff's officer and t#e'll make appropriate
23 arrangements to bring them in and have g.’oves ot
24 whatever. Okay? I just wanted you to know that. All

25 right, go to lunch.

I_
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Jury Question 11^

(Jury excused).

(Lunch recess)
(Deliberations commence at 1:40)
(Jury brought out)
THE COURT: All right, ladies and gentlemen,

you sent us a question that I have mar)ced C-one, 
today's date. The question reads: Please give the
jury the specific law for finding guilty or not guilty 
on the charge of tampering with witness or informants.

The indictment charges the defendant in Covint 
6 with tampering with a witness in violation of a 
statute which provides as follows. Tampering. A 
person commits an offense, if believing that an 
official proceeding or investigation is pending or 
about tc be instituted, he )cnowingly attempts to induce 
or otherwise causes a witness or informant to withhold 
any testimony, information, document or thing. The 
offense involves )inowing attempts to induce a witness 
or informant to testify falsely or in other ways to 
subvert the administration of justice.

Before the defendant can be found guilty of 
violating the statute, the State must prove beyond a 
reasonable doubt each and every one of the follow'.ng 
elements: One, that the defendant believed that an
official proceeding or investigation was pending or

Jury Question 11!

about to be instituted; two, that the defendant 
knowingly attempted to induce or ot.herwlse cause a 
witnesn or informant to withhold any testimony, 
information, document or tuing.

The first element previses that the defendant 
must have believed that an official proceeding or 
investigation was pending or about t9 be instituted. 
This requires that the defendant consider to be true 

an official proceeding or investigation 
In other wotds, that the defendant in his 
an official proceeding or investigation

the fact that 
was pending, 
mind believed 
was pending.

The State must prove that the defendant held 
his belief, but need not prove that a proceeding or 
investigation was in fact pending or about to be 
instituted.

The statute focuses on what the defendant 
believed and not on what was necessarily true, and not 
on external factors that may be Irrelevant to the 
defendant's aim to subvert the administration of 
justice.

The first element also speaks of official 
proceedings or investigations. The word 
"investigation" is not strictly limited to police 
investigations, but covers any kind of official
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proceeding or investigation.
Official proceeding is defined as a 

proceeding heard or nay be heard before any 
legislature, judicial adninistrative, or other 
governmental agency or official authorized to take 
evidence under oath, including any referee, hearing 
examiner, connissioner, notary or other person taking 
testimony or deposition in connection with any such 
proceedings.

The second element of this offense is that 
the defendant knowingly attempted to induce nr 
otherwise cause a witness or informant to withhold any 
testimony, information, document or thing.

The second element requires an attesipt, thus 
the actor need not actually induce a witness or en 
Informant to do anything. The law provides that a 
person is guilty of an attempt to commit a crime if the 
person does anything with the purpose of causing that 
result without further conduct on his part.

In essence, the defendant's purpose must be 
to influence the behavior of the witness or inforstant. 
Having that purpose, the defendant must knowingly 
engage in the attempt to induce or otherwise cause the 
witness or informant to withhold any testimony, 
information, document or thing.

Jury Question 1]

The third element requires the actor to 
employ force, deception or threat. The word "threat* 
includes both overt threat.! anci more subtlit forms of 
Intimidation.

In conclusion, in oxdcz to sustain a 
conviction, the State must prove beyond a reasonable 
doubt each and every element of that offense- If the 
State has failed to prove one or mor'i of the elements 
beyond a reasonable doubt, your verdict should not be 
not guilty. If, however, the State has proven each of 
the elements beyond a reasonable doubt, your verdict 
should be guilty.

That's the charge you requested, you may 
return and deliberate.

(Jury continues deliberations at 2:20)
(Jury brought out)
THE COURT: You may take the verdict.
THE CLERK: Mill the foreperson pltase rise.
As to Indictment 2003>06-2254, between the 

State of New Jersey and Luis F. DaSilva, have you 
agreed upon a verdict?

THE FOREPERSON: Yes, we have.
THE CLERK: Is this verdict unaniaousT
THE FOREPERSON: les, it is.
THE CLERK: On Count one, how do you find as

k.
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to the charge of felony murder?
THE fOREPERSON: Guilty.

THE CLERK: An Count two, how do you find as
to the charge of purposely or knowing murder?

THE FOREPERSON: Guilty.

THE CLERK: On Count three, how do you find
as to the charge of robbery?

THE FOREPERSON: Guilty.

THE CLERK: If guilty Of robbery, was the
defendant armed with, use, or threaten to use a deadly 
weapon?

THE FOREPERSON: Yes.

THE CLERK: On Count four, how do you find as
to the charge of unlawful possession of a weapon?

THE FOREPERSON: Guilty.

THE CLERK: On Count five, how do you FIND as
of possession of a weapon for an unlawfulto the charge 

purpose?

THE FOREPERSON: 
THE CLERK: 

the charge of

Guilty.

On Count 6, how do you find as 
tampering with witness or infonnants? 

THE FOREPERSON: Not guilty.
THE CLERK: On Count 7, how do you

the charge of terroristic threats?
fird as to

THE FOREPERSON: Not- guilty.

Verdict 119

THE CLERK: On count 8, how do you find as to
the charge ot receiving stolen property?

ITiE FOREPERSON Gwilty.

THE COURT: Thank you.
THE COURT: Moula ths officer please get the

jury verdict sheet. You may sit, ma'am.
Please poll the jury.
THE CLERK: Ladies and gontlemen of the jury,

the Court has ordered that the jury be polled. As your 
name is called, please answer "I agree** if this is your 
verdict; or "I do not otgree" if this is not your 
verdict.

(Whereupon the jury is polled ard all answer 
in the affirmative)

THE CLERK: The jury has been polled.
THE COURT: Anything else before I excuse the

jury, gentlemen?
MR. McTIGUE: Nothing further. Judge.
MR. SAMPSON: No, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen of the jury,

everything I say goes for the alternate as well. As 
you know, and as you now must realise, the function 
that you have performed is the most important task 
which you will ever loe called on to fulfill, at least 
the most important civic task any way. With the return
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1 of your verdict, your service in this case is complete.
2 The key to your function has been the free
3 discussion among yourselves during your deliberation.
4 It is essential to the continuation of the fair
5 administration of justice that those discussions remain
6 solely within your minds.
7 Upon your discharge, you are not required,
8 except upon order of this Court, to discuss your
9 deliberations or verdict with anyone.

10 Additionally, no person connected with this
11 trial is permitted, under the rules of court, to engage
12 you in conversation about this matter or about your

13 role in its outcome. All jurors have a right to expect
14 that communications with their fellow jurors during
15 deliberation will remain confidential. Under no
16 circumstances should you make a statement which you
17 would not be willing to repeat under oath in open court
18 in the presence of your fellow jurors.
19 I want to thank you for your service. Its

20 been a little bit longer than the ordinary case, and 1
21 thank you for very being patient and being attentive
22 during the whole time you have been here, all of you.
23 And I'm going to tell you like I tell all the jurors,

24 and that is, there are a lot of places in this world
25 where you can get a trial, but very few where you can

Verdict 121

1 get a jury trial. And this is the way we found is the
2 best way to resolve disputes between the State and
3 citizens, and between cit;zens and citizens. And it
4 only works because people yourself are willing to
5 participate and serve as juroi.*.
6 When wa picked you, you know it took quite a
7 few panels before we got people who could serve fcr two
8 weeks, and its a couple days more than two weeks, I

9 guess. And I'm not saying that any of those people who
10 made excuses, they weren't the truth, but you at least
11 didn't make excuses and you have been here and
12 sacrificed your time, and we appreciate that very *iuch.
13 So I hope you take away a good feeling from, having done
14 your civic duty.
15 You are discharged. You may go home, you
16 need not go back to the fourth floor. Me just need
17 you, on your way out, to hand the officer your jury
18 badges. Thank you.
19 (Jury excused)
20 THE COURT: All right, Mr. McTigue, you are
21 goxng to have to go over the evidence in order to
22 acknowledge return of it.
23 MR. McTIGUC: Before doing that. Judge, I do
24 have an application to the Court.
25 Judge, the jury, having spoken and rendered
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its verdict, Z move to revoke the defendant's ball and 
ask that he be remanded pending sentence.

THE COURT: Ball Is revoked and remanded
pending sentence. When you are ready?

MR. McTIGUE: 1 will get the investigator up.
Judge. We are going to have to get a cart and get 
things out. And Mr. Sampson has a few things he has to 
get also.

THE COURT: Sentencing will be Soptexober
17th.

(Matter concluded)
* « « *
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